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Strategic Report

Status and Advisors

This Strategic Report is thatof the University and its consolidated subsidiaries, South Bank Colleges, South
Bank University Enterprises Limitedand SW4 Catering Ltd (The LSBU Group).

London South Bank University (LSBU) was incorporated on 12 August 1970. It is registered at Companies
House undernumber 986761 and its registered address is 103 Borough Road, London, SE1 0AA.LSBU s a
company limited by guaranteeand hasno share capital.

The governingbody of the University is responsible for the effective stewardship ofthe University and has
controlof therevenue and the property of the University. The University’s corporate governance
arrangements are described from page 25 and themembers of the Board of Governors during the year ended
31 July 2021 arelisted from page 3. The Governors are also directors under the Companies Act 2006.

The University is an exempt charity within the meaning of the Charities Act 2011 applyingin Englandand
Wales and its principal regulator is the Office for Students (OfS). All Governors are also charitable trustees.
The University complies with conditions of grant set out in funding a greements with the relevant grantor.

Solicitors

Shakespeare Martineau LLP 1 Veale Wasbrough Vizards LLP Eversheds 70 Great Bridgewater
Colmore Square Birmingham B4 ~ Narrow QuayHouse, Narrow Street Manchester M1 5ES
6AA Quay, Bristol BS1 4QA

Auditor Internal Auditor Bankers

KPMGLLP BDO LLP Barclays

15 Canada Square London E14 Arcadia House Maritime Walk—  Level 12 One Churchill Place
5GL Ocean Village Southampton SO14 LondonE14 5SHP

3TL

Structure, Governance and Management

The following were Governors throughout the yearended 31 July 2021 except as noted:
Mr Jeremy Cope — Chair

MrDuncanBrown

Mr John Cole

MrMichael Cutbill- Vice Chair

Dr Maureen Dalziel (from 01/03/2021)

Professor Peter Fidler CBE — Senior Independent Director
Ms Ruchika Kumar (from 01/07/2021)

Mr Mark Lemmon

Professor Hilary McCallion CBE (until 11/03/2021)
Professor Nicola Martin

Dr Mee LingNg (until 11/03/2021)

Mr Jeremy Parr
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Professor David Phoenix OBE -Vice Chancellor and Chief Executive
MsRashda Rana

Mr Tony Roberts

MsDeepa Shah

MrMaxwell Smith

Mr Vinaykant Tanna

Ms Harriet Tollerson (until30/06/2021)

Changes to the Board of Governors since 31 July2021
MrTony Roberts (until21/10/2021)

Ms Deepa Shah (until31/10/2021)

Members of Group Executive:

Professor David Phoenix, Vice Chancellorand Chief Executive

Professor Patrick Bailey, Provost (until30/06/21)

MrRichard Flatman, Group Chief Financial Officer

Professor PaulIvey, Deputy Vice Chancellorand Chief Business Officer
Professor Deborah Johnston, Pro Vice Chancellor (Academic Framework)
Ms Nicole Louis, Chief Customer Officer

Mrs Marcelle Moncrieffe-Johnson, Chief People Officer

Ms Fiona Morey, Pro Vice Chancellor (Compulsory and Further Educationand Principal of South Bank
Colleges)

Mr James Stevenson, Group Secretary

Professor Warren Turner, Pro Vice Chancellor (Institute of Health and Social Care)

Changes to the Group Executive since31/07/2021
Professor Tara Dean, Provost (from 01/09/21)
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Objectives and Activities

London South Bank University transforms lives, communities, businesses and society through applied education
and insight. We were established almost 130 years ago with a mission to improve social mobility forthe people
of south London by improving their employment opportunities and providingaccess to the applied knowledge
that would advancetheir businesses. Other than an increasingly globalreach, thatmissionremains almost
unchanged today.

At the heart of the LSBU Group is high quality applied professional and technical education. This is
underpinned by first class academic insight — applied research and knowledge exchange, which provide valued
knowledge to employers and currency to theteaching and studentexperience we offer.

The contentand delivery of our education is based ona detailed understanding of employer expectations.
Around half ofthe University’s courses are accredited by professional bodies, with the other half informed by
employers including through a range of employeradvisory panels. Employer sponsorship is also integral with
around two-thirds of students studying on courses sponsored by over 1500 employer partners. These
relationships and the University’s experience in delivering part-time courses have formed thebasis of LSBU’s
now extensive higher and degree apprenticeship provision, with the widest offerin the UK and over 2000
apprentices on programme.

Our civic mission means that our work is place-based, whether thatplace is ourhome in south London, or
around our international partnerships. Our courses, research and other activities are informed by our detailed
understanding oflocalneeds. Our international links, such as our partnership with the British University in
Egypt, provideglobal context.

Takentogether, the emphasis on place and on professional and technical education is reflected in the
University’s studentdemographics and the excellence ofthe outcomes it achieves forits learners, staff,
employer-partners, and community. The institution’s highly diverse studentbody reflects its institutional
mission and location in south London with more than half the University’s students (55 per cent) identifying as
BAME and 38 per cent being the first in their family to attend university (2019/20).

The University is ranked among the top 200 universities in the world in the Times Higher Impact Rankings
2021 (based onthe UN Sustainable Development Goals) including 17" overall for ‘Gender Equality’ (SDG 5)
and 25" for ‘Reduced Inequalities’ (SDG 10). In both 2018 and 2019, the University was named ‘University of
the Year for Graduate Employment’ by The Times and The Sunday Times Good University Guide, makingus the
first institution to win this award for two consecutive years.

The LSBU Group

LSBU operates as part ofa group structure - the LSBU Group - which was born out of our ongoing commitment
to our civic mission. This structure enables us to create strategies and pathways by which people of all
characteristics and talents can be supported through the education system to achievetheir full potential, and so
contribute their skills, energies, and commitment to wider society throughout their lives. The LSBU Group
comprises: London South Bank University; South Bank Academies (a Multi Academy Trustrunning South
BankEngineering UTC (renamed for2021/22 as South Bank UTC) and the University Academy of
Engineering, South Bank (renamed for2021/22 as South Bank University Academy); and South Bank Colleges
(comprising Lambeth College and South Bank Technical College [under development]). These organisations
work to a shared mission, set of values and educational framework to achieve shared outcomes. South Bank
University Enterprises Ltd, LSBU Ltd, and SW4 Catering Limited are also partof the LSBU Group.

LSBU sponsors South Bank Academies which, whilst not consolidated in these accounts, has a close working
relationship with the LSBU Group and was establishedin 2013 in accordance with LSBU’s mission.

Lambeth College joinedthe LSBU Group on 1% February 2019 whenits assets were transferred to South Bank
Colleges, a wholly owned subsidiary of LSBU. The acquisition aroseoutof a strategic decision to create an
educational group which could morebroadly servethe local community, and which reflects the University’s
long-standing commitment to transforming lives, businesses, communities, and society.

Lambeth College is a medium sized Further Education College based across two sites, with a main centreat
Clapham Commonandan ESOL facility at Brixton Hill. It offers a wide choice of industry-recognised, highly
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regarded courses ranging from Entry Leveland Level 1 courses thatare accessible to allregardless ofpast
experienceand education, throughto Level 4 advanced qualifications. These coverkey areas oflocal
employment including Healthand Social Care, Constructionand Engineering, Science, Business and
Accounting, Creative Arts and Media.

Utilising Skills for Londoners Capital Funding from the Greater London Authority, the LSBU Group has begun
construction of South Bank Technical College on land owned by SBC in Nine Elms, Vauxhall. It will be the

UK’s first purpose-built comprehensive technical college fora generation, with the first buildingopento
students in autumn2022.

Mission
The mission of LSBU is to be recognised as an enterprising civic university thataddresses real world
challenges. In 2020, the University launched its new Corporate Strategy 2020-2025, which has four key

outcomes:

J Student success: Ensuring we are externally recognised for providing a personalised and high calibre
education which equips graduates for employment and prepares them to makea positive contribution to
society.

o Real world impact: Ensuring we provide dynamic evidence-based education which is underpinned by
highly applied research and enterprise activity.

o Access to opportunity: Building opportunity through partnership: ensuring we are actively widening
participation, engaging with our communities and are a partner of choice.

o Fitfor future: Ensuring we operate asone customer-centred organisation, which is accountable,

efficient, and effective.

2020/21has seena number of important strategic developments and some positive outcomes for the LSBU
Group. Highlighted below are key updates and examples of our work underpinning our core corporate
objectives:

Student Success

We aim to ensure that our teaching remains highly applied, professionally accredited, and demonstrably linked
to research and enterprise, delivering the attributes that will make our graduates highly soughta fter. Students are
seen as participants in their learning and their voices are encouraged and listened to. We provide students with
an individualised learning experience to develop the skills and aspirations thatenable them to enter
employment, further study or starttheir own business.

o LSBU wasrated 25" among apprenticeship training providers on Rate My Apprenticeship 2020-21.
LSBU apprentices also won or were shortlisted for: Apprentice of the Yearat the 2020 London
Borough Apprenticeship Awards; the CIBSE Building Services Apprentice Awards 2020; the
construction category of the BAME Apprenticeship Awards;and Employeeof the Yearat the
Worshipful Company of Chartered Architects Apprenticeship Awards.

. LSBU wasranked joint 17" among UK universities for graduate starting salaries at 1 year after
graduation (Longitudinal Educational Outcomes Data 2018-19 [Published2021]).

o The Schoolof Business won awards for Employability Excellence and Teaching Excellence at the first-
ever CIMA Excellence Awards 2021.

o LSBU Nursing and Midwifery students are among the top 10% of earners among graduates in their

profession (Longitudinal Educational Outcomes Data 2018-19 [Published 202 1]) and the University is
the top provider of nursing qualifiers in London with overa fifthof thecapital’s new nurses graduating
from the university in 2019/2020.

o Film Practice students in the School of Arts and Creative Industries won the Best Short Film and Best
Editing Awards at the Royal Television Society (RTS) London Student Television Awards 2021.
. LSBU's Employability and Placements Service wona prestigious College and University Business

Officers (CUBO)award for Business Partnership ofthe Year.
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. A team of LSBU Mechanical Engineering students beat more than 500 teams to win the Mayor of
London’s Entrepreneur Competition with their design fora space-efficientelectric vehicle charging
station.

. Lambeth College was shortlisted for the ‘Best Teachingand Learning Initiative’ and ‘Best Support for
Learners’ Awards at the TESFE 2021 Awards.

o South Bank UTC undertook a ‘Year 14’ pilot, the first ofits kind to be attempted in the UK.

Academic Recognition

This year, the excellent work of our academic staff has once again beenrecognised in research successes and

otheraccolades.

o The National Institute for Health Researchawarded a £1.7m grant to Lynne Dawkins, Professor of

Nicotine and Tobacco Studies from the Centre for Addictive Behaviours Research, fora world-first
trialto test the efficacy of supplying free e-cigarette starter kits atcentres for people experiencing
homelessness.

o Dr Rita de Oliveira was asked by the British Association of Sportand Exercise Sciences to join a panel
of experts presenting evidence to the Department of Digital, Culture, Media, and Sports Select
Committee on major culturaland sporting events.

. PhD student Eric Ballestero was awarded the Young Person’s Award for Innovation in Acoustical
Engineering2021.

o Emeritus Professor Bridget Shield received an MBE in the Queen’s Birthday Honours for her ‘services
to Acoustic Scienceandto inclusionin Science and Engineering.’

o An LSBUteam, led by Catarina Marques, won the Institute of Refrigeration’s Kenneth Lightfoot

Medal forbest technical paper for their project paper GreenSCIES — Green Smart Community
Integrated Energy Systems — Integration with Data Centres.

o Professor Yunting Ge won a £60,000 grant from Innovate UK and a separate £979,290 grant from the
Engineeringand Physical Sciences Research Council for projects related to hydrogen power.

o Professor Karin Moser was appointed European Commission Senior Expert Adviser to the European
Asylum Support Office Strategic Network.

o The Institute of Acoustics created a new award to recognise excellence in teaching, learning or other

education activities, in the name of former LSBU Acoustics Academic, Dr Bob Peters.

Southwark Health SKkills Centre

Thisyear, the LSBU Group opened the Southwark Health Skills Centre, in partnership with Guy’s and St
Thomas’s NHS Trust. The Centre provides the people of Southwark and surrounding boroughs with access to
career pathways in health and social care, whatever their age or educational starting point. Its aim is both to
educateandtrainnew recruits and to upskill existing sta ff. It offers a range of opportunities forall, from
schoolchildren through to existing healthand social care employees, including health sector outreach; careers
inspiration; recruitment and education advice; and health sector specific employability programmes. The Centre
will also playa centralrole in supportingthe Trust’s strategy to develop local talent and build a workforce
pipeline thatreflects the diversity of the population thatit serves.

PassmoreCentre

In November 2018, the University opened the Passmore Centre for Professional and Technical Education. The
Centre, made possible by a £5m grant from Southwark Council, is a hub for professional and technical
education andprovides access for local people and businesses to high quality apprenticeships and other forms of
employer-supported study. The opening of the Centrewas linked to further investmentof £7m, including £3m
from HEFCE, in LSBU’s laboratory facilities to enhanceits professional and technical offer. Since its opening,
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the University now has over 1500 higher and degree apprentices enrolled on over40 apprenticeship standards,
makingus one ofthe leading providers in the country.

Real World Impact

Weaim to deliver outstanding economic, social, and cultural benefits from our intellectual capital, by
connecting our teaching and research to thereal world through commercialactivities and social enterprise.

J The Institute for Health and Social Care at LSBU, with the Royal College of General Practitioners and
Modality Partnership have launched the first ‘new to Partnership’ GP leadership programme to provide
primary careleaders with theknowledge and skills they need to lead atexecutive level.

o Professor Simon Philbin has undertaken a research project designed to createa range of models,
processes, andanalytical tools to measure the SDG impact of infrastructure projects. The research
findings are beingactively applied on the £4.9billion Thames Tideway Tunnel and by the Environment
Agency in itsnew £5 .2billion portfolio of projects.

. The Clarence Centre for Enterprise and Innovation is the University’s hub for enterprise and innovation
providing workspaces for more than 60 businesses that engage in curriculum development, guest
lecturing, student engagementand research projects. It wasranked in the top 15 worldwide of
university-run business incubators in the UBI Global World Rankings 2017/18. Overthe lastyear our
tenant community produced £60m combined income; has created 40 jobs; raised £ 7m in finance; and
hosted 8 LSBU interns.

. 73% of LSBU researchisrated 3* and 4* for Impact in the most recent Research Excellence
Framework (REF 2014). LSBU has commercial research partnerships with over 150 British SMEs and
major companies.

. In2016 LSBU was named Entrepreneurial University ofthe Yearat the Times Higher Education
Awards.

Applied research with local and international impact:
Our internationally renowned researchers this year contributed to theunderstanding of a number of economic
and socialissues.

e Dr Charles Graham of the LSBU Business School undertook a survey looking into the number of
Independent and Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic (BAME) businesses on Lewisham’s high streets —
commissioned by Lewisham Council. After speakingto 94% ofthesebusinesses through student
researchers, Dr Graham madea series of recommendations includinga programme of support and
advice from the Council, individual high street marketing strategies, anda view to encourage
innovation and entrepreneurship to tackle shop vacancies.

e Professor Alison Leary, Chair of Healthcare and Workforce Modelling, led a team seeking to examine
the feasibility of extracting data from Prevention of Future Death coroners reports to evaluate if
learning was possible from them. The team found that systemic analysis of PFDreportsata macro
level could provide significant recommendationsto healthcare providers, and others, in amending
systems, processes and staffing to prevent future deaths.

e Nicola Thomas, Professor of Kidney Care, launched a projectto train barbers in eight barbershops in
Croydonto measureand give advice about blood pressure to their customers in a UK-first project.
Around 30%of men in the UK currently have high blood pressure, around half of these are not
diagnosed orreceiving treatment. High blood pressure is the third biggest cause of diseasein the UK,
leadingto kidney disease, vascular dementia, and mobility problems, costingthe NHS £2 billion every
year. The Londonbarbershop project will target Black and Asian men who aremore likely to havehigh
blood pressure and less likely to be diagnosed than the general population.

ERDF (European Structural Funds) Start-up and SME programmes

LSBUiis the leading HE provider of ERDF funded business and innovation support programmes in London.
Although the UK has now left the European Union, LSBU is continuing to deliver seven programmes, covering
a range of sectors from health techto food tech, with previously committed funds. Through these programmes
overthe nextthreeyears, we aim to support over 1 500 SMEs, create 140 jobs, bringover250new
products/services to firms/markets and createover 170 long term collaborations with innovative SMEs. The
University is actively exploringutilising new domestic funds going forward such as the Help to Grow Fundand
the UK Shared Prosperity Fund.
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Access to Opportunity

LSBU works with partners to provide opportunities for students with the potential to succeed. LSBU is ranked
in the top 200 universities in the world for Social Impact, 17" for gender equality and 25" forreducing
inequality (Times Higher Education Impact Rankings 2021).

Year 14 Pilot

This year, South Bank UTC undertook a pilot totest theefficacy of providinga Year 14. Arounda dozen
students atthe UTC were unable to taketheir places on engineering apprenticeships at the start ofthis academic
year, due to theemployers putting in placehiring freezes in responseto the impact of Covid-19.The UTC
worked with the University to enhance their existing Level 3 BTEC in Engineeringto meetthe HNC
requirement at Level4; with the University providing scholarships to coverthe fees forall students that wish to
enter themselves for the qualifying exam. Pupils that achieved a merit in the requisite elements ofthe HNC were
then given the optionto transfer directly into thesecond year ofthe University ’s mechanical engineering degree.
This has provided these pupils with the opportunity to achievea Level 4 qualificationin a home settingatno
cost to them while simultaneously opening a pathway up to degree level study.

Supporting adults to achievebasic skills

Lambeth College receives funding from the Adult Education Budget each year largely in orderto provide these
learners with a second chance— teaching Entry Level 1 functional skills through to GCSEs in Maths and
English. The courses are provided as flexibly as possible — including part-time, short-courses and teaching at
eveningand weekends — to ensure as many localresidents as possible are able to benefit. In 2020/21 the College
supported 1,359 adults to achieve a Maths and/or English qualification. Formany of them, this will havebeen
one of their first experiences of achievement — attributable in part to the consistentand focused support the
College provides.

In addition tothis, the College teaches ESOL (English for Speakers of Other Languages) courses atits Brixton
Centre — providing an opportunity for those who have recently movedto the UK (including refugees) to achieve
a sufficient level of English, as wellas knowledge about life in the UK and British values, to enable them to
integrate into society. Upon completing the course, many learners go on to follow careers in areas suchas health
and social care, utilising skills and qualifications they acquired in theirhome countries. 1993 adults completed
ESOL courses at the Brixton Centre.

Local Stakeholders

LSBUplaysa keyrole in the community, working closely with borough councils, schools, businesses, and other
organisations to providelocal residents and employers with the education, skills, and knowledge they need.
LSBU also supports its local communities across many other areas including health and wellbeing, legal advice,
business growth and secondary education.

Overthe last academic year, thepandemic provided an impetus for the University to strengthen its partnerships
with its local Councils (the London Borough of Southwark and Lambeth) by signing of new Memorandums of
Understanding (MOUs) with them. Thenew MOU with Lambeth Council, signed in October 2020, looks to
work in partnership to deal with the effects of the Covid-19 crisis, particularly for young people, andto
stimulate recovery across the borough. It is hoped thatit will help to provide greater opportunities for local
residents to learn new skills through the LSBU Group; that LSBU research and insight can beusedto help
Lambeth businesses grow; and that together we can support the Council’s targetto be carbonneutral by 2030.
With Southwark, the new MOU, signed June 2021, commits LSBU to increase the number of trainingand
development opportunities for residents, as wellas making Southwark a leading London borough for health and
life sciences.

The University also signeda new MOU with Orbital South Colleges, to support students in making choices
which suit their interests and abilities, supporttheir development, and maximise career progression
opportunities. The new co-operativerelationship has five objectives including, ‘fasttrack articulation to LSBU’
forsuitable East Surrey College and John Ruskin College students and joint activities to promote
apprenticeships.
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International

LSBU’s collaboration with the British University in Egypt (BUE) offers an exemplar for transnational education
partnerships in practice. As the largest collaboration in the MENA region, the University validates 24
undergraduate and postgraduate courses forover4,500 students. LSBU also has joint supervisions for PhD
students, engages in shared research activities, and has developed a range of Study Abroad and Summer School
opportunities enabling student mobility in both directions.

LSBU’s world-leading Confucius Institute delivers Chinese language teachingto over 60 schools, conducting
education, research and business engagement with Chinese universities and institutions and actingas a hubof
culturaland academic activities. It is the largest Confucius Institute in the world, and one ofthe largest Chinese
language testing centres in Europe. Over 25,000 people haveattended cultural events performances, workshops
and artexhibitions organised by the CI since2017/18.

Fitfor Future
The University is making targeted investments into our staffand both virtual and physical infrastructure and
processes, helping to ensure we operate as one customer-centred organisation, which is accountable, efficient,

and effective.

J LSBU becamethe first university to be independently accredited as meeting national Quality Standards
for Services Supporting Male Victims / Survivors of Sexual Violence.

o LSBU launched anambitious new policy to increase support for staff who experience the menopause.

The policy aims to enable employees to continue being effective in their jobs and toraise wider
awareness and understandingamongall staffabout the menopause.

o LSBUjoined a smallnumber of UK higher education organisations, businesses, and charities in
publishingits ethnicity pay gap data for the first time. Analysis showed that the University’s ethnicity
pay gaphas shrunkby 3.4%since 2017and,at12.2%, is in line with the sectoraverage (among
published institutions) of 12%.

. In April 2020, the University was awarded an Athena SWAN Bronze Charter by professional
membership body AdvanceHE, forachievinga strong foundation in addressing gender bias and
developinganinclusive culture that values all sta ff within the University.

o We have seen our gender pay gap steadily reduce from 13.25%1in 2009 to 4.4%in 2020 — significantly
out-perfomingthe higher educationsectorasa whole.

Covid-19

Thanksto funding received from the Office for Students to supplement LSBU’s hardship fund, the Universitywas
able to distribute £1,373,740 to students whose financial situation were adversely affected by the Covid-19
pandemic overthelast year.

The academic experience, since the onset of the pandemic, of teaching a significant proportion of our content
virtually (while maintaining face-to-face delivery for practical course elements where possible) has driven
significant innovation in aspects of online delivery and accelerated the institution’s understanding of new
pedagogic developments. While the pandemic emphasised the importance of face-to-face teaching for many our
students, the use of online platforms providing access to pre-recorded lectures has been particularly valued by
those learners with significant outside commitments. The advanced accessibility options of online teaching
platforms, such as the use of captions and chat functions, has also supported greater enga gement from some
disabled students. With the return of students to campus in October, the University will continue to utilise the
lessons learned from the last 18 months and use online teaching methods where they add value to the student
experience.

Cyber incident

In December 2020, LSBU experienced a cyber-incident which resulted in the encryption of our servers. We
have beenable to use therecovery process as an opportunity to improveand further modernise LSBU’s sy stems.
Whilst we havebeenable to restore services, the incident did significantly increase staff workload and,
alongside dealing with Covid-19, impacted on studentexperience.

10
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London Road Building Refurbishment

The University is refurbishing its London Road Building on the Southwark Campus, to transform the use and
experience of the building to make it suitable for 21* Century higher education. The new structural elements of
the building are provided through lightweight steel interventions which are suspended from roof level avoiding
the need for additional concrete columnsor foundations. This strategy creates larger and lighter learning areasthat
are more appropriate in meeting modern educational needs. It also allows for column free areas of the building,
enhancing the long-term flexibility and adaptability of the building. The redevelopment adds approximately
1000sqm of floorarea to the buildinghowever, due to the enhanced fabric of the building, no additional carbon
emissions are anticipated compared with the existing building.

Upon completionin early 2022, the renovated London Road building willbecomea new Learning Hub including
a Library and Learning Resources space, space for group work, quiet space, open access computer rooms,
bookable study rooms with AV, small group work rooms and a reconfigured Academy of Sport and catering
facilities. The building will also provide a new cycle park with changing, locker and shower facilities.

South Bank Technical College

In May2021, the University began work building the UK’s first purpose-built comprehensive technical college for
a generation. London South Bank Technical College, opening to students in 2022/23, will train the next generation
of engineers and scientists from its site in Nine Elms.

The building has been joint funded by a £21 million grant from the Mayor of London’s Skills for Londoners Capital
Fund, through the London Economic Action Partnership (LEAP). The firstphase will delivera 9-storey building for
students to study technology, construction, engineering, and science in hi-tech classroomsand workshops. This first
building willopen in 2022/23 and other blocks will open in the following years enabling specialisms in health science
and business.

LSBUCroydon

In September 202 1, the University opened a new campus in the London Borough of Croydon. Given the significant
nursing shortage in South London and Southeast England, LSBU Croydon will largely focus on healthcare,
utilising the University’s expertise in training nurses through our links with over 60 NHS Trusts. The building
will feature brandnew, specialist facilities including simulated nursing wards and Chiropractic suites. In addition
to degrees in adultnursing and mental health nursing, the campus will offer the only Chiropractic Master’s Degree
available in Greater London.

The health provision will be supplemented by businesses courses in Accounting & Finance and Business
Management; as well as a new enterprise offer, which will include an enterprise suite providing co-working spaces
forlocal Croydonbusinesses and a business solutions centre providing advice.

By 2030 we hope to have around 8,000 students studying at LSBU Croydon, with the campus playing a major
role in ourvision to transform lives, communities, businesses and society through applied education and insight.

External Environment

The higher education sector has seen significant policy upheaval over the last decade that shows no signs of
abating. The delivery and regulation of higher education in England has been transformed by the tripling of the
fee cap andremoval of student number controls and the subsequent Higher Education Act 2018 which created the
Office for Students and enabled new marketentrants.

In 2019, the Government released the Post-18 review of education and funding: independent panel report (The
Augar Review) which made a number of wide-ranging recommendations regarding the funding of tettiary
education. The Government released an interim response to the review in January 2021 which did not rule out
eithera cutin thetuition fee cap (recommended in the Augar Review to be reduced to £7,500) or in the introduction
of a minimum level of achievement (for example three D grades equivalent at A-Level or a Grade 4 in GSCE
maths and English) for access to student finance. Both proposals could have very significant impacts on higher
education income and the University is awaiting the full response, expected in autumn 2021 as part of the
Government Comprehensive Spending Review. In theinterim the Government has continued to make changes to

11
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university finances with amendments to the fundingratesof the Teaching Grant for certain subjects within the Bl
funding band and the removal of the London weighting. Simultaneously, the Office for Students is developing
proposals on quality and standards, which may see the introduction of minimum baselines in continuation and
outcomesacross all higher education institutions (regardless of studentdemographics), which will pose challenges
formany universities.

However, alongside these challenges there are opportunities for the LSBU Group. In January 2021, the
Government also released the Skills for Jobs White Paper which contained a number of proposals including the
creation of a Lifelong Learning Entitlement to support provision of Level 4 and 5 qualifications and micro-
credentials as wellas openingup the student finance system to FE Colleges. This would enable the University to
utilise its group structure to introduce greater flexibility within its provision and developnew learning pathways,
including in partnership with other FE colleges within London. The Government is continuing its rollout of Higher
Technical Qualifications (HTQs), in responseto which the University is actively developing qualifications to put
forward for kitemark status. The Institute for Apprenticeships and Technical Education has also announced
proposals to strengthen elements of provision within degree apprenticeships, which LSBU continues to invest in.

In orderto take advantage ofthese opportunities the Group willneed to remain a daptable while continuing to
differentiate ourselves through providing a high quality and truly applied a cademic environment linked to
employers and ensuring that we are seenas an enterprising civic university that addresses real world challenges
— a university thattruly transforms lives, communities, and business.

Going concern statement

The board of Governors is required to produce a statement in the annual accounts that the University Group
continues to be a going concern.

Detailed cash flow and covenant compliance forecasts have been prepared for the next 12 months to the end of
November 2022 which indicate that, taking into account the plausible but potentially severe downsides, the Group
and Parent University will have sufficientliquid assets to meet their liabilities as they fall due.

In reachingthis conclusion that the Group and Parent University is a going concern, the Board of Governors has

also taken into account budget and in year financial management information and current recruitment data for
2021/22.

The principal risks to successful financial delivery in 2021/22 relate to meeting student recruitment targets,
affordability of capital investment needs, regulatory changes to post-18 education fees and funding and the
financial turnaround of South Bank Colleges.

Aftertakingall of these matters into consideration, the Board of Governors is confident that the Groupand parent
University will be in compliance with its debt covenants even in plausible but potentially severe downside
scenarios and will havesufficient funds to continue to meettheir liabilities as they falldue foratleast 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statements (the going concern assessment period) and therefore have
prepared the financial statements on a going concernbasis.

Principalrisks and uncertainties

At a corporate level, risks are identified and managed through the University Group’s risk management
processes asdescribed in the statementon internal control.

The Corporate Risk Registeris the subject of careful and frequentreview andis aligned to the Corporate
Strategy. The principalrisks which the institution faces in the short and medium term, considering external
factors in the main, and the associated mitigation strategies areas follows:

Risk Category | Risk Controls and Mitigation
Financial Sustainability of current e Regularreview and consideration of potential options
pension schemes for future provision, including the modelling/ scenario
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analysis of future costs and projected movements in
assets & liabilities.

Group defined contribution scheme for professional
services staff.

Strict controls over early access to pensions.

Meeting student recruitment|

Ongoing marketing, recruitment and conversion

and progressiontargets activities focussed on domestic students, including plan|
forclearing.
Pipeline continually monitored.
oversight of progression metric at Quality and
Standards Committee and Student Experience
Committee, risk-based auditing of courses and
university interventions to improve progression in shor
and medium term.
Income growth from Regularreportingto the Enterprise Advisory Board.
Researchand Enterprise Focus on STEM, Health and Inclusive Growth as
unrealised dominant sectors of interest.
Affordability of capital Capexreportingembedded into management accounts
investment plans provided to Finance, Planningand Resources

Committee.

Estatesproject methodology controls & governance
Financial Regulations require Board approval for spend
greaterthan £2m.
Exploringalternative funding options.

Financial impact of Covid-19

Regularreview of financial impact of Covid-19
Cost control measures.

Financial turnaround of
South Bank Colleges

Developmentof operating and funding model for
LSBU Technical College.
Banking covenants tied to LSBU performance.

Cash funds are not available
to fund expenditure

Rolling 1 2-month cashflow forecasts,
Active debtor management.

Infrastructure

IT security orservices fail

Rollinginvestmentplan,

Regularreporting of statusand security metrics,
IT business continuity plans refreshed annually.
Security services and infrastructure reviewed
annually,

Staffand Student cyber security a wareness training
programme,

Security Operations Group established.

Academic
Activity

OfS Thresholdsnot met in
relation to Conditionof
Registration on Quality /
Student Outcomes

Monitoring of performance against OfS thresholds in
relation to Condition of Registration on Quality /
Student Outcomes.

Interventions to improve student progression and
employability are priorities in short and medium term.

Reputation

Impact ofassurance activity|
& newinitiatives fails to
address issues around
studentexperience

NSS action planto drive improvement ofthe student
experience,

Student Tracker implemented in conjunction with the
Students’ Union, to monitorissues raised by students
and actions taken in response.

13
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Alignment of estate with
sectorrequirements a cross
the Group

Group wide estates strategy, aligned with professional
and technical curriculum needs.

Creation of Employer Advisory Board, to ensure
facilities in line with sector/industry standards.

Capability to respond to Developmentof the2025 strategy, with input sought
change in policy or from multiple stakeholders.

competitive Regularperformance assessmentin sector context.
landscapeincluding funding

changes

League table rank e Prioritisation of students' outcomes in our corporate
deterioration/ reputational strategy, including progression and employability.
impact e Review process ofexternal returns, contributing to

league table performance.

Energy and Carbon Report

LSBUis dedicated toprotecting our planet and society. We promise to becomea university of the future — one
that is conscious, one that is responsible and one that is sustainable. As part of our 2025 Corporate Strategy we
aim to:
o Use ourestate effectively and efficiently with a utilisationrate of50%.
e Reduce ourcarbon footprintby 25%between 2020 and 2025, with the goal of achieving zero catbon
emissions by 2050.

We will do this through environmental sustainability and literacy, with this being embedded through the
reduction of carbonemissions and landfilluse, and by increased recycling.

The data belowrelatesto periods from 1 August—31 July

Electricity Consumption 18/19 19/20 20/21 Unit(s)
12,438,493 10,044,742 9,744,719 KWhr
Gas Consumption 18/19 19/20 20/21
10,039,318 9,025,689 10,234,403 KWhr

Carbon Emissions (with

REGO since 2019) 2010 Baseline 18/19 19/20 20/21 Unit(s)
11,694 5,352 1,711 1,904 tCO?
Intensities 2010 Baseline 18/19 19/20 20/21
0.079 0.036 0.011 0.013 tCO%/m?

14



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDE61585-459F-4AF4-ACC6-4E870579CC8A

tCO2

14,000
12,000

10,000

8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000
o i1

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

mtCO2

During, 2020/21, LSBU added the Non-Half Hourly Electricity supply contracts to the Renewable Electricity
contract (REGO) with its current energy supplier, allowing the University to report zero carbon emissions for
electricity consumption across the campus. LSBU now uses 100% REGO. Total calculated carbon emissions
(scope 1 & 2) relate to the energy consumptions and the appropriate carbon factors being applied. Reference to
baseline relates to that agreed with HEFCE and is based upon 2010 data and calculated carbon emissions. The
agreed HEFCE target at that time was for LSBU to reduce its scope 1 & 2 emissions by 34% by 2020. This was
revised in 2017 to 50% reduction. The current positionis a reductionof84%since 2010 baseline.

Covid-19 has had an impact on energy consumption and ultimately carbon reduction has remained fairly static.
LSBU remains committed to remove any reliance on fossil fuels going forward. Decarbonisation technologies and
theirbenefitsare being investigated.

The University has a commitment to construct any new build to Building Research Establishment Environmental
Assessment Method (BREEAM) rating Excellent and any major refurbishment to BREEAM rating Good. Our
ZONES learning environment transformation programme aims for BREEAM rating ‘Very Good.” It will include
improved insulation, utilising natural light and space for bicycle storage. Our contractors are committed to
purchasing products from responsible sources with limited environmental impact, to reducing construction related
impacts suchasnoise, dust, and odours, procuring 100% FSC/PEFC sustainable materials, reducing dependency
on natural resourcessuch as energy and water, reducing construction waste and preserving and enhancing the local
biodiversity.

London South Bank University (charity) Public Benefit statement

LSBU s an exemptcharity within the meaning of the Charities Act 2011. Its principal regulator is the Office for
Students (OfS).

The accounts of South Bank Colleges (SBC), an exempt charity within the meaning of the Charities Act 2011,
form part of theseaccounts. Further details on how SBC meets its public benefit obligations are set out in
SBC’sown accounts.

Charity Commission Guidance on Public Benefit
The members of the Board of Governors are the charitable trustees of LSBU. In undertaking its duties, the
Board of Governors has regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit.
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Charitable Objects
The charitable objects(unders.3 Charities Act 2011) of LSBU, as set out in its Articles of Association, are to:

e conductauniversity for the public benefit for the advancement of education, promotion ofresearch and
dissemination ofknowledge;

e provide fulltime and part time courses of educationatalllevels; and

e provide facilities to promote these objects and provide associated support and welfare for students.

LSBU’s objects are applied solely for the public benefit, as follows.

LSBU advances education for the public benefit by:
e providingteachingto its students in the form oflectures, seminars, personal tuition, and online
resources;
deliveringmany courses accredited by recognised professional bodies, fulland parttime;
setting and marking assessments, giving feedback to students, and providing evidence ofachievement
by the awarding of degrees, diplomas, and certificates.

LSBU promotes researchand the dissemination ofknowledge by:
e undertaking academic researchand publishing theresults;
e publishingarticles in peer-reviewed journals;
e maintaininganonline and physical academic library with access for students, sta ff, and guests;

LSBU provides support and services for students through:
o wellbeingservices, including support for students with disabilities and mental health issues. This
includes a counselling service;
studentadvice and guidance services via a one-stop-shop and studenthelpdesks
employability services, supporting students who are working while studying, helping students source
work experience and graduate opportunities;
e moneyadvice, including debt management;
e specific support services for particular groups of students, including care leavers, carers, and pregnant
students;
mentoring and coaching;
providing student accommodation;

e fundingsomeindividual students’ education through bursaries and fee waivers; and
e providing funds to London South Bank University Students’ Union (LSBUSU).
Beneficiaries

In carryingoutits objects, LSBU benefits its students and future students through teachingand learning
activities either directly or through the support ofits subsidiaries (SBA and SBC). LSBU also benefits the
wider public, through research and knowledge transfer.

The trustees affirm that the opportunity to benefit is notunreasonably restricted. The benefits oflearningat LSBU
are opento anyone whom it believes has the potential to succeed. Throughout its history, LSBU has enabled wider
access to education. Its 2020-2025 Strategy sets clear targets to focus on three key areas, all directly related to
providing public benefit: student success; real world impact; access to opportunity. The fourth key area; fit for the
future, recognises the need for LSBU to adapt to the digital world, its new organisational structure and changng
stakeholder expectations.

Like otheruniversities, LSBU must charge tuition fees. However, tuition fee and maintenance loans are available
to home undergraduates who have applied for funding via Student Finance England. In addition, the University
offers financial assistance in the form of scholarships, bursaries, and charitable funds to students in need.

The University has one “linked” exempt charity: the LSBU consolidated charitable fund for the welfare of
students. This fund was worth£951,096 on31 July 2021 (31 July 2020: £862,387). The funds are managed with
the aim of'securing capital growth and an annual income. In20/21 the income received was £27,396 (2019/20:
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£16,192). The income is allocated for distribution by the University’s Hardship Panel to students in financial
difficulty.

The University’s curriculum is firmly rooted in professional courses supported by accreditation from professional,
statutory, and regulatory bodies thatenhance employability and career success. In2020, 74.6% of gra duates were
in graduate employment and/or further study 15 months after leaving (Graduate Outcomes survey resuls
2018/19).

The University also contributes to the wider public benefit through the publication of research. The University
performed well in the Research Excellence Framework 2014, with the majority of its research graded as
“Internationally Excellent” and “Recognised Internationally”. LSBU is committed to Open Access, sharng
scholarly works with industry, the professions and wider public through LSBU Research Open and providing an
Open Access Fund topay Open Access publication costs.

LSBU is London’s largest university contributor to community-based enterprise, evidenced by involvement in
some £15m of ERDF and ESF projects. The commitment to local enterprise education and SME developmentis
recognised internationally, from working with refugee groups across South London to operating commercially m
Borough Market.

Access and Participation Plan statement 2020-21

As part of LSBU’s registration with the Office for Students, an Access and Participation Plan for the 2020-2025
academic years was approved by the OfS and made publicly available by LSBU on our website:
https://www.lsbu.ac.uk/about-us/policies-regulations-procedures (file held here).

In the plan, we assessed our performanceacross access, student success, and progression, set out our ambition and
strategy, and outlined our intended activity and measures supported by an investment summary which
demonstrated our commitment to our overarching mission of social mobility.

As set out laterin the financial accounts, we spent a total of £1,923,833 across the 2020-21 academic year across
three categories: access investment, financial support provided to students, and research and evaluation. This

figure both meets and exceeds the commitment we set out in our investment summary: we had projecteda total
spend of £1,753,500.

During 2020, LSBU joined the world in responding to the Covid-19 pandemic which extended across the20-21
academic year. We were keenly aware of the disproportionate direct and indirect impact Covid-19 was having on
many of the student groups already identified as facing disadvantage. We rapidly responded with an increased
package of targeted emotional, safety, practical, study, and financial support, considering the needs of students
most vulnerable to the effects of the pandemic. For example, the direct financial support funded by LSBU and
distributed to students within the 2020-21 academic year was £551,360, an increase of 112% more than our
intended investment.

The total investment has supported the delivery of our plan this year across both general and targeted access,
success and progression activity, including active research to eliminate the race awarding ga p through our What
Works programme, widening participation and outreach, specialist support services, enhanced transition andstudy
skills, financial student support, period poverty, and care experienced and estranged student support.

As stated by the Office for Students, the investment summary and forecastbelow in access, financial supportand
research and evaluation does not represent the total amount spent by LSBU in these areas. The OfS does not
require providers to reporton investment in success and progression and therefore investment in these areasis not
represented. The figures below are not comparable to previousaccess and participation plans or access agreements
asdata published in previous years does not reflect latest provider projections on student numbers. The spend on
support for disabled students (directly funded costs, for example an educational psychologist’s assessment,
specialist mentor, or sign langua ge interpreter) have been included in the investment summary for completeness
but this spend was not requested to be forecastby the OfS.
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Access andParticipation Plan investment summary 2020-21

Access and participation plan investmentsummary | Actual spend: Academicyear 2020-21
(£)

Accessinvestment (access) £1,275,034

Financial support providedto students £551,360

Researchand evaluation £97,439

Total investment £1,923,833

Supportfor disabledstudents £295,532

(Investment plan from 2020-25 Access and Participation Plan for2020-21)

Access and participation planinvestment summary Investmentplan: Academicyear2020-21
(£)
Access investment £1,400,000
Financial support £260,000
Research and evaluation £93,500
Total planned investment £1,753,500
Financial Review

Balance sheet and liquidity
The Group’snetassets increased by 14% during the year, moving from £83.7mto £95.1m,anincreaseof£11.4m.

The change withinthe Net Assetposition was driven by capital investmentacross the LSBU Group which resulted
in a £40.5m increase in Fixed Assets, an increase of 13%. This increase includes New Fixed assets totalling
£51.6m, less opening balance sheet reclassification of£4.1m and after a charge for depreciation of£11.2m.

With regard to other changes in Net Assets, there was a 48% increase in debtors to the group moving from £234m
to £34.7m an increase of £10.9m. £11.2m is due to an increase in trade debtors which is primarily Tuition Fees
and Hall of Residence charges. This yearis considered exceptional due to thechallenges of Covid-19 and dueto
IT issues and we continue to actively manage the level of Tuition Fee debt. The remainder of the change is due
to a £0.5m increase in prepayments andaccruals anda £0.4m decrease in ‘Other debtors’ relating to other income
sources and commercial tenants.

With regard to other positive changes in Net Assets, the amount owed to creditors falling due after more than one
yearreducedby £1.0m from £69.1mto £68.1. This reductionis due to a decrease in outstanding bank loans.

In terms of negative movements in netassets; cash and cash equivalents decreased by £1 1.6m and our investments
decreasedby £10.8mto fund thedevelopments in the estate that hasled to the increase in Fixed Assets. Our cash
and cash equivalents now total £28.8m.

There wasa 32% increasein creditors falling due within oneyear moving from £47.1mto £62.1m anincrease of
£15.0m. £0.7m of this increase was dueto an increase in other creditors whilst £14.1m was due to an increase in
accruals and deferred income primarily relating to capital investments in the University’s digital infrastructure,
the London Road Huband the London South Bank Technical College thatare due to bepaid in 2021/22.

Of the other negative changesto Net assets, the key movement was due to the change in the valuation ofthe deficit
in the London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA) Scheme. The deficit has increased by £3.7m and now stands at
£184.7m.

18



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDE61585-459F-4AF4-ACC6-4E870579CC8A

Movement in Net Assets
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The Group always plans to have sufficient liquid assets to meet its liabilities as they falldue. Cashbalancesand
bank deposits decreased from £52.2m on 31 July 2020 to £29.8m on 31 July 2021 whilst Bank and other loans
decreased from £34.5mto £32.5mreflectingtheloanrepaymentsmadeduringtheyear.

The levels of borrowing facilities are reviewed on a regular basis and are considered adequate to meet current
operational plans. The University has also agreed Revolving Credit Facilities totalling £4 5m, which will provide
a degree of flexibility with regardto liquid assets as we continueto invest in the LSBU Group Estate.

Resultfor the Year
FinancialSummaryin£m Variance from2019/20 £m
2020/21 2019/20
Income 198.9 184.5 14.4 7.8%
Expenditure 1959 183.1 12.8 7.0%
Surplus forthe year 3.0 1.4 1.6 114.3%
Surplus % 1.5% 0.8%

The operating surplus of £3.0m for LSBU and SBUEL is ahead of the agreed LSBU Group budget surplus of
£2.0m and delivers to the forecast surplus of £2.8m submitted to the Office for Students (OfS) in February 2021

as part of theirmonitoring processes and to the ESFA as part of the ongoing monitoring of the Lambeth College

transaction.

The surplus of £3.0m is also an improvement on the £1.4m achieved in 2019/20. The financial improvement is
due to strong recruitment and re-enrolment and the continuing investmentbeing made by the LSBU Groupacross
its estate. Given the context of Covid-19 and the recruitment challenges a cross the sectorin 2020/2 1, particularly
with regard to changes in the full-time undergraduate demographic and the continuing decline of the part time
studentmarket, thisisa considereda goodresult.
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Year on Year Income (£m)

m2019/20
m2020/21

36.6389
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Body Grants Endowments

T

Totalincome forthe group increased by 7.8% (£14.4m) to £198.8m (2019/20: £184.5m). The increase in Funding
Grants is linked to temporary additional financial support of the FE Sector during Covid-19. The increase in
Tuition Fees was driven by additional student numbers at the University. The decline in other income was
primarily Covid-19related and is dueto a reduction in University Hall’s Income and Commercial Tenant income.

Academic fees (including NHS contractincome) and Funding Council Grants remain the main sources ofincome
for the LSBU Group representing 2020/21 70% and 20% respectively (2019/20 67% and 20%). There was an
increase in temporary Funding Grants across the FE sector to manage some of the additional costs of Covid-19.
Tuition fees haveincreased year on year due to strongrecruitment and re-enrolmentat the University and due to
a growth in international student numbers. The other positive factor a ffecting income was another annual increase
in research income following a number of successful research bids. Although other Income at the University
declined, our Enterprise portfolio performed well, and it was our studentrelated incomethat experienced the year-
on-yeardecline. This is expected to be a temporary dip as the University opens its campus and its halls in 21/22.

2020/21Incomeas a % of total Income

Other Income
7%

Research
3%

Funding Body
Grants
20%

Tuition Fees
70%

Totalexpenditure forthe group increased by 7.0% (£12.8m) to £195.9m (2018/19: £183.1m).
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Year on Year Expenditure change

m2019/20
m2020/21

Staff Costs Operating Expenses Depreciation Interest

The key driver of the increase in expenditure was staff costs. Staff costs increased by 10.6% from £103.6m in
2019/20to £114.6min 2020/21 representing 57.6% ofincome (2019/20:56.1%). Although there was the nommal
levelof increase linked to payuplift and increments, the LSBU group also invested in a dditional professional staff
to supportour studentnumber growth. Therewas also anincrease in Group pension costs.

Staffing costs at SBC remainslightly higheras a percentage ofincome thanthe University, and staff costsremain
an area of continued focus for the Groupin 2021/22.

Other operating expenses increased by just 2% from £64.0m in 2019/20 to £65.3m. The University Group is
extremely focused on delivering value for money for students and constantly reviews expenditure to drive down
costs. There were increases in security and cleaning costs due to the ongoing implementation ofthe London Living
Wage and additional cover required due to Covid-19, an increase in both business rates and utility bills and an
increase in the costof Scholarships as the University invests in Research activities. The University also expensed
some of the business change costs associated with the Leap Programme.

2020/21 Expenditure as a % of total costs
Interest

V)
Depreciation 2%
6%

erating Expenses
op 33%% P StaffCosts

59%

There were no asset disposals and theincreasein the value ofthe Group’s fixed assets is due to the continued
investment within the LSBU Physical and Digital Estate particularly in the London Road Hub, the London
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South Bank Technical College, and the Leap programme, which involves consolidating the University’s CRM
systems andreplacing the Student Record System.

Financial Trend Analysis
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Surplus ——Income

The LSBU Group’s Income has increased by 44% since 2015/16. There have been large decreases in funding
grants, but this has been offset by larger tuition fees, although the funding per student has declined, as Tuition
Fees have not been increased with inflation. The University Group has also seen growth in Postgraduate and
International tuition fees over this time and a growth in Transnational Education Income. The key driver for
income growthin 18/19 was theabsorption of SBC into the LSBU Group.

In terms of surplus, the LSBU Group a lways aims to make a small surplusand has consistently doneso. Thefuture
forecastssubmitted to our regulator, the OFS, reflect our aspiration to generate a positive financial position in each
of'the next5 years. Theextraordinary surplus of 1 8/19 reflects the strongunderlying performanceat LSBUwhich
contributed £3.1m but was also dueto therevaluation of Assets within SBC which contributed £16.2m.

Subsidiaries

South Bank University Enterprises Limited (SBUEL) provides consultancy and other services to a range of
commercial organisations. SBUEL has entered into Gift Aid arrangements in order that its taxable profits canbe
donated tothe University. SBUEL donated £0.3m in gift aid to the University (2020: £0.2m).

South Bank Colleges acquired the assets of Lambeth College on 1 February 2019. The College delivers a wide
range of courses and apprenticeships that open doors to career opportunities and further study.

SW4 Cateringis a wholly owned subsidiary of South Bank Colleges.

Disclosure ofinformation to auditors
At the date of making this reporteach of the Governors, as set out from page 3, confirm the following:

e Asfaraseach Governoris aware, there is no relevant informationneeded by the University’s auditors in
connection with preparing their report of which the University ’s auditors areunaware; and

o Each Governorhastakenallthe stepsthathe orshe ought to take asa Governor in order to make him or
herself aware of any relevant information needed by the University’s auditors in connection with
preparingtheir report and to establish that the University’s auditors areaware of thatinformation.

Auditor

The Board of Governors has confirmed that KPMG UK LLP shall continueas auditor of the University for the
financialyear,2021/22.

22



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDE61585-459F-4AF4-ACC6-4E870579CC8A

Directors’ Report

This Strategic Report alsoserves as the University’s Directors’ Report for the purposes of the Companies Act
2006.

Approval
Approvedbythe Board of Governors and signed on behalfof the Board by:

Jurvy (ope

Mr Jeremy Cope (Chair)

Dave Pleovniy

Professor David Phoenix (Vice Chancellorand Chief Executive)
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Statement of Board of Governors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report and the Financial
Statements

The Board of Governors is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of the Office for Students’ Terms and Conditions of Funding for Higher
Education Institutions and Research England’s Terms and Conditions of Research England Grantand applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they
have elected to prepare the group and parent University financial statements in accordance with UK accounting
standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. The terms and conditions of funding further
require the financial statements to be prepared in accordance with the 2015 Statement of Recommended Practice
— Accounting for Further and Higher Education, in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts Direction
issued by the Office for Students.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unlessthey are satisfied thatthey give
a true and fair view of the state ofa ffairs of the group and parent University and of their income and expenditure,
gains and losses and changes in reserves for that period. In preparing each of the group and parent Universiy
financial statements, the directors are required to:
e selectsuitable accountingpolicies and apply them consistently;
o makejudgements and estimates thatare reasonable and prudent;
e state whether applicable UK accounting standardshavebeen followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explainedin the financial statements;
e assessthe groupand parent University’s ability to continueasa going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and
e use the goingconcern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the group orthe parent
University orto cease operations or have norealistic alternativebut todo so.

The Board of Governors is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the parent University’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent University and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
group andto preventand detect fraud and otherirregularities.

The Board of Governors arealso responsible for ensuring that:

e funds from whatever source administered by the Group or the University for specific purposes have been
properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;

e fundsprovided by the Office for Students and Research England have been applied in accordance with
the terms and conditions attached to them;

e there are appropriate financial and management controls in placeto safeguard public funds and funds
from othersources; and

e cconomical, efficient,and effective managementof the university’s resources and expenditure is
secured.

The Board of Governors is responsible for the maintenance and integrity ofthe corporate and financial information
included on the University’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statementsmay differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Signed on behalf ofthe Board of Governors by:

vy Cope
Mr Jeremy Cope
Chairof the Board of Governors
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Corporate Governance Statement

The following statement is given to assist readers of the accounts in understanding the governance and legal
structure of the University. The accounts of South Bank Colleges (SBC)and South Bank University Enterprises
Ltd form part oftheseaccounts (South Bank Academies is also within the LSBU Group but is not consolidated).
Further details on the corporate governance arrangements of these companies are included in their own accounts.

The University’s Board of Governors is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance.
In carryingoutits duties it follows:
e The Directors’ duties as set outin sections 1 70— 177 of the Companies Act 2006
e The CUC Higher Education Code of Governance
o HigherEducation Senior Staff Remuneration Code
o HigherEducation Audit Committees Code of Practice
e The Office for Students(OfS) Terms and conditions of funding for higher education institutions and the
Audit Code of Practice (March 2018)
e The OfS Public Interest Governance Principles
e The Charity Commission’s Guidance on Public Benefit andits duties as charity trustees of compliance,
prudence, and care
e The University’s Articles of Associationand standing orders
e Theseven principles of standards in public life
e Otherlegislative requirements of corporate and Higher Education bodies

Governance and Legal Structure

London South Bank University is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity within the meaning of
the Charities Act 2011. Its objects and powers are set outin its Articles of Association. The Articles providethe
governance framework of the University and set out the key responsibilities of the Board of Governors and its
powers to delegateto committees, the Vice Chancellor, and the Academic Board.

Compliance with the Public Interest Governance Principles

The University demonstrated its compliance with the OfS’s Public Interest Governance principles when
registering with the OfS and they continue to be upheld by LSBU through the current governance structures
reported in this sectionand theuniversity’s relevant published policies.

Compliance with the CUC Higher Education Code of Governance

The Board has materially complied with allaspects of therevised Higher Education Code of Governance (CUC,
September2020) during the yearunderreview, as demonstrated below. References to paragraphs ofthe code are
shown in brackets below.

Decisionmaking

London South Bank University is led by a Board of Governors, which is collectively responsible for the strategic
direction of the University, approval of major projects and partnerships and ensuring that the potential of every
studentis maximised(1.1).

The Board hasagreeda Schedule of Matters Reserved which establishes the responsibilities of the Board and its
committees. The Board, and where appropriate, its committees make decisions by consensus at meetings or
electronically. The schedule is reviewed on an annual basis. The schedule has been updated to reflect the new
group structure of LSBU.

During the year, the Board met six times (five times in 2019/20). In addition, the Board held three strategy days
(two in 2019/20) allowing further time to discuss and debate longer-term strategic challenges forthe University.
All governors are expected to attend meetings and to contribute effectively. Attendance at meetings is recorded
and monitored by the Chair. In the yearunderreview, there was a 93% (2019/20: 92%) attendance rate at Board
meetings.
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Due to the national Covid-19 pandemic, the majority of Board and committee meetings took place online via
video-conferencing software between March 2020 and July 2021. Attendance at these virtual meetings remained
high and governors continued to engage well with discussion. Following relaxation of most national Covid-19
restrictions the July 2021 Board meeting was successfully held in person, and all future Board and committee
meetings are expected to takeplace face-to-face.

During May 2021, oneadditional meeting of the Group Audit and Risk Committee was held in order to examine
the response to the December 2020 cyber incident.

The Board has dueregard to Charity Commission guidance on public benefit when making decisions (see separate
statement of public benefit on page 15 (1.2.). The Board receives an annual reminder on Charity Commission
guidance(most recently, 21 October 2021). It receives assurance that the institution meets the requirements ofthe
Terms and conditions of funding for higher education institutions with OfS through the Group Audit and Risk
Committee (2.6).

Compliance

All governors and members of the Executive are required to declare their interests on appointment, on an annual
basisandare required to declareany interests whichrelate to decisionsatmeetings. During the yearunder review,
all declared interests were authorised by the Board. No conditions were attached to any of these interests (3 2).
The governing body affirms that it makes decisions without any undue pressure from external interest groups,
which is assured through the declaration ofinterests’ process (3.3).

The Board receives annual reports on the institution’s compliance with key legislation, for example health and
safety; equality, diversity, and inclusion; and otherwise by exception reporting (1.2). In addition, independent
governors have the right to external, independentadvice at the University’s expense where necessary in order to
fulfil their duties. Material adverse change and reportable events are reported to the OfS when discovered and
annually aspart ofthe Accountability and Assurance statement (6.3). One reportable event was reported (the cyber
incident of December 2020), and no material adverse changes were reported to the OfS during the year.

The Board receives annual reports from the Students’ Union in relation to its democratic processes and finances
(3.6).

Sustainability

The Board is responsible for the financial sustainability of the institution and approves theannual budget, which
is aligned to the five-year corporate strategy (2.2). The Board oversees the performance and financial sustainability
of the institution by regularly reviewing Key Performance Indicators, management accounts and five-year
forecasts (2.3). Overall financial control is delegated to the Chief Financial Officer, who is a member of the
Executive and hasregularaccess tothe Vice Chancellor, as and when required (2.6).

Academic governance

The Board has oversight of academic governance across the institution, receiving an annual assurance repott from
the Academic Board, covering its Quality and Standards, Research, and Student Experience Committees. An
independentgovernor attends Academic Board meetings as an observer.

The Boardhasregardto theprinciple ofacademic freedom (2.7).

Externalactivities

The Board reviews all proposals for all significant, external activities and independent legal advice is sought, if
necessary. Due diligenceis conducted when entering into major projects that have significant risk associated with
them (2.6).
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Equalityand Diversity

The Board receives an annual report on equality, diversity, and inclusion (EDI), and compliance with the public
sectorequality duty under the Equality Act2010(4.1,4.3). Following its EDI workshop with an external facilitator
in summer 2020, the Board has continued to prioritise EDI development at a strategy session, resultingin the
approval of the new Group EDI Strategy at its meetingof2 1 October 2021. An independent governor is a member
of the Group EDI staffnetwork.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and considers equality and diversity in its appointments. The
Nomination Committee has agreed that in the event of underrepresentation of any group, targeted recruitment
would be used toaddress this (4.4, 5.3). During winter 2020/21 a recruitment firm that specialises in equalty and
diversity was used to recruit one new governor and one new co-opted committee member. During September
2021,theBoard Apprentice Schemewas utilised to recruit apprentice governors from diverse backgrounds.

Structures andprocesses

The Board when fully complemented consists of 18 governors: 13 independent governors, the Vice Chancellor,
two student governors and two members of the Academic Board. Governors serving forthe period are listed on
page 3. The Board determines the number and composition of the Board of Governors within parameters set by
the University’s Articles of Association. Sta ff and student governors were not excluded from any items at Board
meetings duringtheyear(1.4).

Under the Articles, the Board has the power to remove any governor from office if they breach their terms of
office (5.9). On appointment, governors also agree to act in accordance with the seven principles of public life
and the university values. (1.3, 3.1). All members of the Board have access to the services of the Clerk. The
appointment orremoval of the Clerk is a matter for the Board as a whole under the Articles (5.1).

Followingthe publication ofthe OfS Public Interest Governance Principles in 2018, all governors have confimed
that theymeetthe ‘fit and proper’ definitions as set out by the OfS.

Committees

The Board delegates authority to a number of committees. All committees are formally constituted with
appropriate terms of reference, which are reviewed annually. Terms of reference and membership of each
committee are available on the governance pages of the University’s website. Each committee (except the
Honorary Awards Joint Committee) normally has a majority of independent governors. The chairs of each
committee are independent governors and areset out below under Key Individuals.

The following principal committees met throughoutthe year:

e Appointments Committee

e  Group Audit and Risk Committee

e Finance, Planningand Resources Committee
e  MajorProjects and Investment Committee

¢ Nomination Committee

e Remuneration Committee

e Honomary Awards Joint Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recruiting new independent governors (5.10). Recommendations
are made to the Appointments Committee, which makes the final decision on appointment. A written description
of the role and capabilities required of governors has beenagreed by the Nomination Committee. Candidates are
judged against the capabilities required and thebalance ofskills, experience currently on the Board. The balance

of skills, experience and diversity of independent governors is kept continually underreview by the Nomination
Committee.
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The Group Audit and Risk Committee oversees LSBU’s audit activities including auditing the financial
statements, appointing the internal and external auditors, and advising the Board on the effectiveness of the
internalcontrol system.

The CUC publishedits HE Audit Committees Codeof Practicein May2020. The Group Audit and Risk
Committee has reviewed this Codeand is satisfied that all requirements are met.

As previously agreed by the Board, the Group Audit and Risk Committee has a Group-wide remit. Membership
of the Group Audit and Risk Committeeis between three and four independent governors, and a co-opted
externalmember. Following OfS requirements, the committee produces anannual report for the Board, which
gives an annual opinion on risk management control and governance; economy, efficiency, and effectiveness;
and managementand quality assurance of data submitted to externalbodies. The committeereviews the
effectiveness of the systems of control in place across theinstitution. The committee receives an annual report
on the quality of data submitted to external bodies. The committee receives assurance annually from the
external auditor that public funds havebeen spent appropriately.

Under the new Audit Code, the Group Audit and Risk Committee conducted a substantive effectiveness review
during Summer 2021, led by the Senior Independent Governor (SIG). The results of the review were positive,
and respondents agreed thatthe committee was properly constituted with appropriate membership and is
effective in addressing its duties and reporting requirements.

The Finance, Planningand Resources Committee provides for the Board in-depthreview of the University’s in-
year financial performance, financial position including cashflow, the performance againstthe corporate strategy,
treasury management and the proposed annual budget. The committee also reviews student recruitment and
retention figures, the implications of the Group strategy for human and physical resources and receives oversight
of the value added by Group entities. Membership of the Finance, Planning and Resources Committee is up to
five independent governors including the Chair of the Board, plus the Vice Chancellor, one student govemor and
one staff governor. The committee terms of reference were updated in 2020 to clarify that it will receive high-
levelreports on the overall performance and valueto the LSBU Group of its subsidiaries.

The Major Projects and Investment Committee is authorised by the Board to approve investment decisions within
authorisation levels as set out in the Financial Regulations. The committee also reviews investment decisions
above its level of authority and recommends approval to the Board. Inaddition, the Major Projects and Investment
Committee reviews ‘master plans’ for estate and infrastructure and monitors the delivery of major projects.
Membership consists of up to five independent governors including the Chair of the Board, the Vice Chancellor,
one student governor and one staff governor. During the year, a key focus of the Major Projects and Investment
Committee was to scrutinise investment in Project LEAP.

There is a Remuneration Committee which decides the remuneration of senior executives, including the Vice
Chancellor (2.10). Membership ofthe committee is four independent governors, including the Chair ofthe Board.
No individual is present for discussions that directly affect them. The Vice Chancellor is not a member of the
committee. The committee considers comparison information and use of public funding when deciding
remuneration.

Further details on the work ofthe committee are included in the annual remuneration report from page.

The Honorary Joint Awards Committeeis a joint committee withthe Academic Board. It has delegated authority
from the Board of Governors to select recipients for the conferment of an honorary degree or an honorary
fellowship based on procedures and criteria as approved by the Academic Board. [ts membership comprises
independent governors, and staff and student governors who are also members ofthe Academic Board.

Governanceeffectiveness review

During 2018/19, the Board completed a full effectiveness review which was reported to the July 2019 Board
meeting (the previous review was conducted in 2015 in line with 7.12 of the CUC Code). Following this review
no major changes to the Board’s structure were proposed. The review was undertaken internally but was quality
assured by PwC (7.11), who concluded that they “did not identify any issues with the way in which the process
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was run by the governanceteam. We are comfortable thatthe process was free ofbias and was conducted
appropriately.”

The main recommendations arising outof the review were:

1. toreview both assurance and reporting from the Academic Boardto the Board to enable greater
visibility of the work doneby the Academic Board;

2. thatagendas for Board meetings and Strategy Days provide greater focus on strategic discussions and a
reduction of operational papers; and

3. continued focus on finalising ‘Group’ governance arrangements and structure and for the Board of
Governors tobe assured ofits responsibilities and potential liabilities in relation toit.

As reported tothe Boardin July 2020, theactionplan is now complete.

The next full effectiveness review is expected to be carried outin calendaryear2023.

The LSBU Group

Governance structures were updated with the creation of the LSBU Group in 2018/19. Both South Bank
Academies and South Bank Colleges havetheir own Boards of Trustees who areresponsible forthe success of
theircompanies. The LSBU Board continues to oversee LSBU butalso has oversightof the valuethatboth
SBA and SBC bringto the LSBU Group. The Chairs of the Group Boards and the Group CEO meet formally
twice yearly to discuss matters a ffecting the three educational institutions. One of the annual strategy days is
reserved to cover Group strategy.

Key Individuals
Position Name
Chairofthe Board of Governors Jeremy Cope
Vice Chairofthe Board of Governors Michael Cutbill
Senior Independent Governor Peter Fidler (from 25 March 2021)

Hilary McCallion (until24 March2021)

Group CEO (Vice Chancellorand ChiefExecutive) | David Phoenix

Chairof Group Audit and Risk Committee DuncanBrown
Chairof Finance, Planning and Resources Michael Cutbill
Committee

Chairof Major Projects and Investment Committee | RashdaRana

Chair of Nominations Committee Jeremy Cope
Chairof Appointments Committee Jeremy Cope
Chair of Remuneration Committee Jeremy Parr
Group Secretaryand Clerkto theBoard of James Stevenson
Governors

Key individuals canbe contacted through the office ofthe Group Secretary and Clerk to theBoard of
Governors, MrJames Stevenson, at London South Bank University, 103 Borough Road, LondonSE1 0AA.
Published documents are available onthe governance section ofthe University website.
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Statement of Primary Responsibilities of the Board of Governors
(Based onthe CUC Guide for Members of Higher Education Governing Bodies in the UK)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

To set and agree the mission, strategic vision, and values ofthe university with the Executive.

To review the overall performance and alignment to LSBU’s mission and charitable objectives of each
of South Bank Colleges, South Bank Academies and South Bank University Enterprises Ltd.

To agree long-term academic and business plans and key performance indicators and ensure that these
meet the interests of stakeholders, especially staff, students, and alumni.

To ensure that processes are in placeto monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the
university against the strategy, plans and approved key performance indicators, which should be, where
possible and appropriate, benchmarked a gainst other comparable institutions.

To delegate authority to the Vice Chancellor for the academic, corporate, financial, estateand human
resource management of theuniversity, and to establish and keepunderregularreview the policies,
procedures and limits within such management functions as shallbe undertakenby andunder the
authority of the Vice Chancellor.

To ensure the establishment and monitoring of systems of control and accountability, including financial
and operational controls, risk assessment, va lue for money arrangements and procedures for handling
internal grievances and managing conflicts of interest.

To establish processes to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness ofthe governing body
itself.

To conduct its business in accordance with best practice in HE corporate governance and with the
principles of public life drawnup by the Committee on Standards in Public Life.

To safeguard the goodname and values of the university.

To appoint the Vice Chancelloras Chief Executiveand to putin place suitable arrangements for
monitoring their performance.

To appoint a Secretary tothe governingbody and to ensure that, if the personappointed has managerial
responsibilities in the university, there is an appropriate separation in the lines of a ccountability.

To be the employing authority for all staffin the university and to be accountable for ensuring that an
appropriate humanresources strategy is established.

To be the principal financial and business authority ofthe university, to ensure thatproper books of
account arekept, to approvethe annual budgetand financial statements, and to have overall
accountability for the university’s assets, property, and estate.

To be the university’s legal authority and, as such, to ensure systems are in placeformeetingall the
university’s legal obligations, including thosearising from contracts and other legal commitmentsmade
in the university’s name. This includes accountability for health, sa fety, and security and for equality,
diversity, andinclusion.

To receive assurance thatadequate provision has been made for the general welfare of students.

To act astrustee forany property, legacy, endowment, bequest or gift in supportof thework and welfare
of the university.

To ensure that the university’s constitution is always followed, and thatappropriate advice is available
to enable this to happen.
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18. To promote a culture which supports inclusivity and diversity acrossthe university.
19. To maintainand protect theprinciples ofacademic freedom and freedom of speech legislation.

20. To ensure that all students and staffhave opportunities to engage with the governance and management
of the university.

Statement of Internal Control

As the governing body of London South Bank University, we have responsibility for ensuring that there is a
process for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of policies, aims and
objectives of the University, whilst safeguarding the public and other funds and assets for which we are
responsible.

The system ofinternal controlis designed to manage rather than eliminate therisk of failure to achieve policies,
aims andobjectives; it cantherefore only provide reasonable and notabsolute assurance of effectiveness.

The system ofinternal control is based on an ongoing process linked to the achievement ofinstitutional objectives
and designed to identify the principal risks to the achievement of policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
nature and extent of those risks and to manage them efficiently, effectively, and economically. This process has
been in place for the year ended 31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements and
accords with OfS conditions.

As the governing body, we have responsibility forreviewingthe effectiveness of the system of internal control
The following processes have been established:

e Wemeeta minimum of seventimes a year (including 2 strategy days) to consider theplans and
strategic directionofthe institution;

e Theapproachto internal controlis risk based, including a regular evaluation ofthe likelihood and
impactofrisksbecominga reality;

e The Group Audit and Risk Committee provides regular oversightof therisk management process and
commentson its effectiveness;

e Wereceive periodic reports from the chair of the Group Audit and Risk Committee concerning
internal controland we require regular reports from managers on internal control activities and the
steps they are taking to manage risks in their areas ofresponsibility, including progress reports on key
projects;

e The Group Audit and Risk Committeereceivesregular quarterly reports from management;

e Internalauditis outsourced to anexternal provider. The Group Audit and Risk Committeereceives
regularreports from theinternal auditor, which include theirindependent opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of theinstitution’s system of internal control, governance and risk management
processes, together with recommendations for improvement;

e Theinternalaudit programmehas been aligned with the University’s corporaterisk register;

e An organisation-wide register of key corporate risks is maintained, together with individual
operationalrisk registers for each schooland professional service group. Review procedures coverrisk
to achievementof strategic objectives, operational business matters, and regulatory complianceas well
as financialrisk;

e A network of risk champions exists to support risk management activity in all schools and professional
service groups;
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e Formalrisk management and internal control procedures have been embedded within ongoing
operations.

Our review of the effectiveness of the system ofinternal control is informed by internal audit, which operates to
standards defined in the OfS Regulatory Framework and as per the Internal Audit Charter, also adheres to the
definition ofinternal auditing, code ofethics and the standards for professional practice thatare published by the
Institute of Internal Auditors. The internal auditors submit regular reports, which include their independent
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the institution’s system of internal control, governance and risk
management processes, with recommendations for improvement.

Our review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is also informed by the work of the executive
managers within the institution, who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the intemal
control framework, and by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports.

Annual Remuneration Report

Introduction
This remunerationreport sets out the University’s approach to determining senior pay and outlines performance
and reward duringthe year.

The Board has adopted the CUC Remuneration Code and approved a senior remunerationpolicy. A key principle
of'the latteris to ensure base salaries for established executives, performing well, are competitive in the London
marketplaceand beyondi.e., normally no worse than the London median for comparable institutions. In addition,
the remuneration policy includes, where appropriate, individual and team based executive bonus awards for
achieving stretching and clearly defined key performance indicators and objectives.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining the remuneration ofthe Vice Chancellor and Senior
Executives covered by the Senior Remuneration Policy. Senior Executives are the senior leaders of LSBU who
report directly to the Vice Chancellor. The Senior Executives fortheyeararelisted on page2.

Full details of the senior pay policies referred toin this report are a vailable on the LSBU website.

Terms of Reference
The Remuneration Committee’s Terms of Reference are available online.

Committee Membership 2020/2021

The members of the committee forthe year2020/21 were Jeremy Parr (Committee Chair), Jerry Cope (Chair of
the Board), Michael Cutbill (Vice Chairof the Board), Mee LingNg (untilMarch 2021) and Deepa Shah (from
March 2021 to October 2021). All members of the committee are independent governors. No members of the
executive are members of the committee. The Vice Chancellor is invited to committee meetings where
appropriate, such as to make recommendations on pay awards and bonuses of senior executives. No member of
the executive was present for any discussion on their own remuneration.

Committee meetings 2020/21

The committeemet three times in the 2020/21 academic year.
e 3 November2020
e 30March2021 (by email)
e 22June2021
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The committee also met on2 November202 1 to consider Senior Executive performance and remuneration for
2020/21.

Approach to remuneration ofallstaffin2020/21 and for 1 August2021 onward

The LSBU group is a large complex organisation requiring both general and specialised leadership to fulfil its
strategic objective of being seen as a nationally leading provider of technical and professional education. This
requires the provision of high-quality teachingand support to its students, at home and overseas, enabling them
to face therealworld confidently and successfully. The teaching environment will be underpinned by input from
employers and will have a strong focus on enterprise and applied research.

To achieve this objective, LSBU Group needs to attract, retain, and motivate a strong calibre of leaders with
competitive remuneration packages, within both a London and international labour market. However, the
approachto senior remuneration must be framed within a context that all LSBU Group employees are, and feel,
remunerated fairly for theirroles and responsibilities and enthusiasm for the success ofthe University and Group.

Atthe LSBU Group, we createan environment which attractsand fosters the very best staff, and in which all staff,
whatever their role, feel valued and proud of the Group and take appropriate responsibility for its development.
Embracing and integrating equality and diversity and inclusion is fundamental to our success and growth as an
institution ofhigher education.

Senior Remuneration
In setting senior remuneration, LSBU has adopted the CUC Higher Education Senior Staff Remuneration Code
(2018).

LSBU’s Senior Remuneration Policy (agreed by the Board in October 2018 andreviewed in November 2021) sets
out the following principles for senior remuneration:

e Remunemation will be applied to ensure that it is discrimination free, and based on job scale and
complexity;

e Base salaries for established executives, performing well, are competitive in the London market-place
and beyondi.e. normally no worse than the London median for comparable institutions;

e Overallremuneration levels, including benefits, will be set to attractand retain good quality leaders, with
a significant elementof reward based on performance, assessed a gainst objectives;

e Startingpackages will reflect the experience and capability and particular circumstances of candidates,
and the size and challenge ofthe particularrole facing them;

e New starters will initially therefore often receive higher than average annual increases as ther
performancemoves towards and as appropriate above the median expected forthe role;

e Overallnonetheless the average % annual pay increases for senior executives asa whole will normally
beno higherthanforallemployees, including the value of increments, where paid;

e Accountwill also be taken of the ratio of the Group CEO's base salary within an HE setting and total
remuneration tothe median earnings ofthe university as a whole, both absolute and the change from the
previous years;

e Individual annual pay increases will be influenced by performance, but in general good or exceptional
performance will be rewarded mainly by annual unconsolidated bonus rather than basic pay;

e Thisindividual performance annual bonus scheme, currently setata maximum of 10% ofbasic pay, will
be based on pre-agreed clear measurable output-based objectives; no individual bonus will normally be
paid unless the University meets an overall financial target set by the Boardas a whole;

e At the Remuneration Committee’s discretion, a team bonus awarded a gainst specific team objectivesin
additiontothe individual bonus will operate, currently set at a maximum of 8% with thepotential to rise
to 10% on the approval ofthe Remuneration Committee;

e At the Board's discretion, the overall package may also include a longer-term incentive scheme, the
perceived value of which should be included in assessing comparability with equivalent institutions;

e The Board will publish the value of the packages of some or all of its senior executives, in the way
defined and required by the Office for Students (OfS);
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e These principles will be resubmitted to the full Board for endorsement, as a minimum once every three
years and will be published in LSBU's Report & Accounts.

Benchmarking
The committee has agreed that based on the distinctive challenges and structure of the LSBU group the
followingrelevantbenchmarks and indicators would normally be taken into consideration when setting and
reviewingthe Vice Chancellor’s salary:
e Londonmodern universities;
e To the extent available, institutions of similar size and type based on UCEA data (this data will be
interpreted to take account of LSBU’s London locationby adding 5%); and
e Tothe extentavailable, otheruniversities with a group structure or similar complexity of structure or
regulatory framework.

Senior executive pay is independently benchmarked every three years. Korn Ferry carried outthis review in
September and October 2021. Following this review, the remuneration committee a greed that overall benefits
forits Senior Executive team remain broadly comparable fortheirroles, but that someadjustments mightneed
to be made, depending on performance, in future years.

The Hay Group Guide Chart Profile Method of job evaluation was used to set the benchmark forall Executive
leveljobs andsalaries.

Institutional performance, 2020/21

The Board monitors the performance ofthe University through thea greed key performance indicators. As set out
in the Strategic Report, the University performed well in terms of both financial and many strategic outcomes,
notwithstanding that some strategic objectives were inevitably impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and the
disruptive I'T outage which the university experienced in late 2020.

Institutional performance including areas measured by the key performanceindicators plus individual objectives
are reviewed as partof individual Senior Executives’ appraisals and are overseen by the Remuneration Committee.

Group CEO performance,2020/21

This assessment of the Group CEO’s performanceis foracademic year 2020/2021. The bonus awarded based on
performance foracademic year2020/21 will be paid in financial year2021/22 and appear in next year’s
accounts.

The Group CEO’s performance was reviewed by the Chair of the Board as part ofthe appraisal process, looking
at key results both against key KPIs forthe University, which the Group CEO oversees, and a gainst the specific
personal objectives (marked *) set for the Group CEO by the Remuneration Committee:

e  *The financialstability of the organisation has continued, and the diversity of income streams has
been increased;

e  Highstandardsof safety havebeenachievedacrossallparts of the LSBU Group;
e  Recruitmentin 2021, hasheld up orincreased, thanks to the growing reputation ofthe University,

. *Institutional reputation across the Group has improved butdisappointingly specific UK League
table rankings for the University havedecreased primarily followinga change in the measurementin
the sector of studentoutcomes, butalso impacted bya relativedrop in National Student Survey
scores;

e  The KEF return was submittedand placed LSBU in the top quartile based on nomalised data and the
REF submission was completed and showed almostdouble the staff submitted previously. These
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measures havedrivenimprovements in the Times World Rankings (now joint 83™in UK 801-1000
globally);

e  Good progress in terms of student outcomes continues to be made at Lambeth College, a key element
of the family of educational institutions’ strategy, financial performance continues to be a challenge
but planstocompletetherecovery are progressing;

e  Costshavebeencontrolled carefully, butwith investmentin key strategic areas;
e  *Staffengagement was again strongat a time of significant change and disruption;

e  **Notwithstandinga ffordability challenges progress has been made ona number of key major
projects and plans, including the opening of an exciting new campus at Croydon;

e  Thenew Group strategy building on the growing family of educational institutions vision is
underpinningkey strategic initiatives;

e  There hasbeen strongand confident leadership during the pandemic ensuring that students acrossthe
Group were well supported to achievetheir learning objectives; and

e  High profile contributions havebeen made on thenational stage in terms of the development of the
Sectorin terms of social mobility and on technicaluniversities.

In conclusion, the Group, with a prudent financial strategy, is well placed to thrive and improve student outcomes
in a potentially tough environment going forward. The Board continues to recognise the importance of maintaining
a stronganddetermined leadership team across allareasof activity.

During the yearunderreview, the Vice Chancellor was awarded a bonus of £12.7k for individual performance (a
bonusof£17.9kwas awarded for performance in 2019/20) and a bonus of £3.7k for team performance.

Performance relatedpay, 2020/21 and 202 1/22

Under the Senior Remuneration Policy, for 2020/21, the Group CEO and Senior Executives were eligible for a
bonusofupto 10%of salary and fora team bonus of upto 8% of salary as set outin the remuneration principles
above. The award of both individual and team bonuses is reviewed and approved by the Remuneration Committee.

Duringthe year, the University metits overall financial targetand nine members of the executive were eligible to
receive an individual bonus and nine members a team bonus. Following the appraisal process and a report on
performance against individual measurable objectives, the Committee approved nine individual bonuses
(including the Group CEO) and a team bonus (of 1.56%) together totalling £90.9k (for 2019/20 performance,
eight individualbonuses and a team bonus were awarded totalling £100k).

There is a separate performance related pay scheme for Senior Managers (grades A — B. Bonus of up to 3% of
salary) and Senior Leaders (grade C. Bonus of up to 10% of salary). Staff eligible for performance related pay
receive annual inflation uplifts to their base pay. Bonuses for performance during2020/21 willbe determined n
November2021.

Total Remuneration: Vice Chancellor
The table below sets out payments to the Vice Chancellor during 2020/21 with a comparison to 2019/20. The
bonus figure relates to performancein the previous year.

Emoluments of the Vice Chancellor 2020-21 2019-20
£°000 £°000
Salary 238 238
Accommodation allowance 10 10
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Performancerelated pay 33 30
Taxablebenefits 1 1
Subtotal 282 279
Pens-ion schenlle cqntributions or payments in lieu of 35 35
pension contributions

Total 317 314

For the currentyear, the Group CEO/Vice Chancellor has been awarded a pay increase of 1.5%, in line with the
pay award to LSBU employees.

Pay Multiple
The Group CEO/Vice Chancellor’s basic salary is 6 times the median pay of'staff across the organisation, where
the medianpayis calculated on a full-time equivalent basis for the salaries paid by the providerto its staff.

The Group CEO/Vice Chancellor’s total remunerationis 6.9 times the median total remuneration of staff, where
the medianpayis calculated on a full-time equivalentbasis for the salaries paid by the provider to its sta ff.

The paymultiple has remained in line with that of previous years.

Ratio basic Ratio total
Year salary remuneration
2020/21 6.06 6.89
201920 6.23 6.94
2018/19 6.15 6.78
2017/18 6.18 6.86
2016/17 6.33 7.01
2015/16 6.10 6.97

Theratios do not include agency workers.

The LSBUratios compare to the average sectorratio of 6.4 forbasic pay and 6.97 for total remuneration (based
on HESA Head of Provider data for2019/20).

External appointments, expenses, and severance

LSBU’spolicy on the retention of income generated from external bodies is that Executive members are expected
to declare any external income. The expectation is that external income can either be retained or shared with the
institution. Agreement shall be sought from the Group CEO (and in the case of the Group CEO by the Chair of
the Board andreported to the Chair of the Remuneration Committee). Where Executive members are a ppointed
on a fractional basis it may well be external activity canbe accommodated outside contract, but it should still be
declaredto avoid conflict. The Remuneration Committee reviews these declarations.

In 2020/21, the Vice Chancellor donatedroyalties to the University’s hardship fund. The Vice Chancellor did not
undertakeany external remunerated activity.

LSBU’s Expensepolicyis available online. Itapplies to all staff including Senior Executives.
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In 2020/21, the Vice Chancellor’s expenses totalled £869. These are payments on a purchasing card for travel,
accommodation, meals, entertaining and other authorised costs. No travel was booked through the University’s
centraltravel buying team for the Vice Chancellor andno expenses were claimed through the payroll.

The Remuneration Committee has approved a policy onseverancearangements.

Independent Auditors report to the Board of Governors of London South Bank University

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of London South Bank University (“the University”) for the year ended
31 July 2021 which comprise the Consolidated and University Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure, Consolidated and University Statement of Changes in Reserves, Consolidated and University
Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and related notes, including the accounting policies in
note 1.

In ouropinionthe financial statements:

e give a true andfairview of the stateof the Group’s and ofthe University’s affairsas of 31 July 2021, and of
the Group’s and ofthe University’s income and expenditure, gains and losses and changes in reserves, and
of the Group’s cash flows, fortheyearthen ended; and

e havebeenproperly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable inthe UK and Republic of Ireland; and

e havebeenproperly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Ourresponsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and
are independent of the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard.
We believe thattheaudit evidence we haveobtained is a sufficientand a ppropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The Governing Body has prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the Group orthe University orto cease their operations, and as they have concluded thatthe Group and
the University’s financial position means thatthis is realistic. They have also concluded thatthereare no material
uncertainties thatcould have castsignificant doubtovertheirability to continue as a goingconcern forat leasta
year fromthedateof approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).

In ourevaluation ofthe Governing Body’s conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group’s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and University’s financial resources or ability to
continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

e we considerthat the Governing Body’s use of the going concern basis ofaccounting in the preparation of the
financial statementsis appropriate;

e we have not identified and concur with the Governing Body’s assessment that there is not, a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubtonthe
Group orthe University’s ability to continueas a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guaranteethat the Group orthe University will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches oflaws and regulations — ability to detect
To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicateanincentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud.

Our risk assessment procedures included:

e Enquiringofthe Directors, the Audit and Risk Committee and internal audit as to the University’s
high-levelpolicies and procedures to preventand detect fraud, including the internal audit function, as
well as whether they haveknowledge of any actual, suspected, oralleged fraud;

Reading Board, Audit and Risk Committee and Remuneration Committee minutes; and
Using analytical procedures to identify unusual orunexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughoutthe audit teamand remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout theaudit.

As required by auditing standards and taking into account possible pressures to meet loan covenants, we perform
procedures to address the risk of management override of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition,
in particular the risk thatincome from tuition feesis recorded in the wrong period and the risk that Group
management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries, and the risk of bias in accounting
estimates and judgements.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

In determining the audit procedures, we took into accountthe resultsof our evaluation of some ofthe Group’s
fraudrisk management controls

We also performed proceduresincluding:

e Identifyingjournal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparing the
identified entries to supporting documentation. These included unusual credits to revenue accounts and
unusual postings to suspense accounts;

e Sample testingof tuitionincomereceived in the period 01 July 2021 to 31 October2021 to determine
whether tuitionincome was recognised in the correctaccounting period; and

e Assessingsignificant accounting estimates for bias.

Identifying andresponding torisks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws andregulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with
the Governing Body and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the
University’s regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the Governing Body and other management
the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

As the Group isregulated, our assessmentof risks involved gaining anunderstanding of the control environment
includingthe entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory requirements.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alertto any indications of
non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly a ffect the financial statements including financial
reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), taxation legislation, pensions legislation and
specific disclosures required by highereducation legislation and regulation, charities legislation andrelated
legislation. We assessed the extentof compliance with these lawsandregulations as partof our procedures on the
related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
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imposition of finesor litigation or the loss of the University’s registration with the Office for Students or the need
to include significant provisions. We identified the followingareas as those most likely to have such aneffect:
GDPR compliance, health and safety legislation, employment and social security legislation, anti-bribery,and
money laundering, recognising the regulated nature of the Group’s activities. Auditing standards limit the required
audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other
management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational
regulations is not disclosed tous or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit willnot detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detectfraud or breaches oflaw or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and perfoormed our audit

in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance
or fraudand cannotbe expected to detect non-compliance with alllaws and regulations.

Other information
The Governing Body is responsible for the other information, which comprises the Strategic Report and the
Corporate Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express anaudit opinion or, exceptas explicitly stated below, any form ofassurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements
or ouraudit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e  we havenotidentified material misstatements in the other information;

e in ouropinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Corporate Governance Statement,
which together constitute the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year, is consistent
with the financial statements; and

e  in ouropinion thosereports have beenprepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are requiredto reportby exception
Underthe Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequateaccountingrecords havenotbeenkeptby theparent University, or returns adequate for our audit
havenot been received from branches notvisited by us; or

e theparent University’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums;
or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are notmade; or

e we havenotreceivedallthe informationand explanations we require for our audit; or
We have nothingto report in theserespects.

Governing Body responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 30, the Governing Body (who are the Directors of the
University company for the purposes of company law) is responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as it determines i
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud orerror; assessing the Group and parent University’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
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as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it either
intends to liquidate the Group orthe parent University or to cease operations, or has norealistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in anauditor’s report.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance but does not guarantee thatanaudit conducted in accordance
with [ISAs (UK) will always detecta material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
errorand are considered material if, individually orin aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisionsof users taken onthebasis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of ourresponsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at
www.f{rc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

REPORT ON OTHERLEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

We are required to report onthe following matters by the Accounts Directiondated25 October 2019 issued by
the Office for Students (‘the Accounts Direction’).

In ouropinion, in allmaterial respects:

e funds from whatever source administered by the Group orthe University for specific purposes have been
properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;

e income hasbeenapplied in accordance with the University's Statutes (or articles of government for post
1992 institutions);

e fundsprovided by the Office for Students, UK Research and Innovation (including Research England),
the Educationand Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education have been applied in
accordance with the relevantterms and conditions; and

e thefinancial statements meet the requirements of the Accounts Directiondated 25 October 2019 issued
by the Office for Students.

Matters on which we are requiredto reportby exception

We are required by the Accounts Direction to report to you where the University has anaccess and participation
plan that has beenapproved by the Office for Students’ director of fairaccess and participationand the results of
our audit work indicate that the Group’s and the University’s expenditure on access and participation activities
forthe financial year disclosed in Note 10 has been materially misstated.

We are also required by the Accounts Direction to report to youwhere the results of ouraudit work indicate that
the Group’s and the University’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements has been
materially misstated.

We have nothingto report in theserespects.

THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES
Thisreport is madesolely to the Governing Body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 ofthe Companies Act
2006 and paragraph 18(1) ofthe University's Articles of Government. Our audit work has beenundertaken so that
we might state tothe Governing Body those matters we are required to stateto them in an auditor’s report and for

no otherpurpose. To the fullestextentpermitted by law, we donot accept or assume responsibility to anyoneother
than the University and the Governing Body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we haveformed.
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Auwl” Nl

Fleur Nieboer

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

E14 5GL

9 December2021
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London South Bank University

Consolidated and University Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

Year ended 31 July 2021
CONSOLIDATED UNIVERSITY
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income
Tuition fees and education contracts 1 139,562 123,642 136,234 120,796
Fundingbody grants 2 38,891 36,581 17,184 16,781
Research grants and contracts 3 5,915 5,464 4,152 4,362
Otherincome 4 13,670 17,951 8,273 11,422
Investment income 5 60 308 60 300
Transfer of netassets from Lambeth College - - - -
Total income before other grants and donations 198,098 183,946 165,903 153,661
Donations and Endowments 6 746 552 24 11
Total income 198,844 184,498 165,927 153,672
Expenditure
Staffcosts 8 114,578 103,621 94,123 81,213
Otheroperating expenses 10 65,257 63,980 54,844 57,462
Depreciation 13-14 11,251 10,627 9,977 9,354
Interest and other finance costs 12 4,817 4,920 4,337 4,417
Total expenditure 195,903 183,148 163,281 152,446
Surplus before other gains and losses 2,941 1,350 2,646 1,226
Gains on investments 21 89 7 89 7
Surplus for the year 3,030 1,357 2,735 1,233
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of pension schemes and other 28 8,337 (44,078) 5,588 (38,002)
movements
Total comprehensive income/(expenditure) for the year 11,367 42,721) 8,323 (36,769)
Represented by:
Endowment comprehensive income for the year 89 7 89 7
Restricted comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Unrestricted comprehensiveincome/(loss) for the year 11,278 (42,728) 8,234 (36,776)
11,367 42,721) 8,323 (36,769)

All activities consist of continuing operations.
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London South Bank University

Consolidated and University Statement of Changes in Reserves

Year ended 31 July 2021
Income and Expenditure  Revaluation Total
Reserve Reserve Reserves

Consolidated Endowment Unrestrictea

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at1 August2019 855 99,632 25,951 126,438
Surplus from the income and expenditure statement - 1,350 - 1,350
Other comprehensive income/(expenditure) 7 (44,078) - (44,071)
Transfers betweenrevaluation and income and expenditure reserve - 694 (694) -
Totalcomprehensive income/(expenditure) forthe year 7 (42,034) (694) (42,721)
Balance at1 August2020 862 57,598 25,257 83,717
Surplus from the income and expenditure statement - 2,941 - 2,941
Other comprehensive income/(expenditure) 89 8,337 - 8,426
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserve - 681 (681) -
Totalcomprehensive income/(expenditure) for the year 89 11,959 (681) 11,367
Balanceat31 July2021 951 69,557 24,576 95,084
University
Balance at1 August2019 855 83,219 25,951 110,025
Surplus from the income and expenditure statement - 1,226 - 1,226
Other comprehensive income/(expenditure) 7 (38,002) - (37,995)
Transfers betweenrevaluation and income and expenditure reserve - 694 (694) -
Total comprehensive income/(expenditure) forthe year 7 (36,082) (694) (36,769)
Gift aid received - 116 - 116
Balance at1 August2020 862 47,253 25,257 73,372
Surplus from the income and expenditure statement - 2,646 - 2,646
Other comprehensive income/(expenditure) 89 5,588 - 5,677
Transfers betweenrevaluation and income and expenditure reserve - 681 (681) -
Totalcomprehensive income/(expenditure) for the year 89 8,915 (681) 8,323
Giftaid received - 189 - 189
Re-capitalisation of SBUEL - (500) - (500)
Balance at31 July2021 951 55,857 24,576 81,384
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London South Bank University

Consolidated and University Balance sheets

As at 31 July 2021
Consolidated University
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
Restated* Restated*
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets

Intangible assets 13 8 137 8 137
Tangible fixed assets 14 348,271 307,784 270,474 235,706
Investments 15 38 38 38 38

348317 307.959 270.520 235.881

Current assets
Stock 6 6 6 6
Debtors 16 34,696 23,408 49,395 34351
Investments 23 950 11,811 950 11,811
Cash andcash equivalents 23 28.813 40,373 25.164 37.856
64,465 75,598 75,515 84,024
Creditors: amounts falling due within oneyear 17 (62.101) (47.146) (54.547) (38.784)
Net current assets 2.364 28.452 20.968 45.240
Total assets less currentliabilities 350,681 336,411 291,488 281,121
Creditors: amounts falling due a fter more than one year 18 (68,098) (69,108) (50,153) (52,952)
Provisions
Pension provisions 20 (187,499) (183,586) (159,951) (154,797)
Total net assets 95.084 83.717 81.384 73.372
Restricted reserves - endowmentreserves 21 951 862 951 862
Unrestricted Reserves
Income and expenditure reserve 69,557 57,598 55,857 47,253
Revaluationreserve 24,576 25,257 24,576 25,257
Total Reserves 95.084 83.717 81.384 73.372

*Seenotes 14and 17 fordetails regarding the restatement

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Governors on 25 November 2021 and were signed and authorised on their

behalfby:
Jury (epe Dot Plestinire
Mr Jeremy Cope (Chair) Professor David Phoenix (Vice Chancellorand Chief Executive)
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London South Bank University

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 July 2021

Note 2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus forthe year 3,030 1,357
Adjustment for non cashitems
Amortisation/depreciation 13-14 11,251 10,627
Investment income 5 (60) (308)
Interestpayable 12 4,817 4,920
Decrease in stock - -
Increase in debtors 16 (11,288) (4,409)
Increase / (Decrease) in creditors 17-18 11,763 (2,077)
Pension costs less contributions payable 11,255 4,773
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 14 403 954
Adjustment for investment or financing activities
Investment income 5 23 11
Interestreceivable 5 37 297
Net cashinflow from operating activities 31.231 16.145
Cashflows from investing activities
Payment to acquire tangible and intangible fixed assets 14 (49,830) (19,017)
Cash (addedto)/removed from fixed term deposits 23 10.861 -

(38.969) (19.017)

Cashflows from financing activities

Capital element ofbank loan repayments 19 (1,969) (1,910)
Interestelement of bank loan repayments 12 (1.853) (1.933)
(3.822) (3.843)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year (11.560) (6.715)
Cash atbank and ondeposit at the start ofthe year 23 40,373 47,088
Cash atbank and ondeposit at the end of theyear 28,813 40,373
Analysis of Changes in Net Debt atl August Cashflows Othernon- at31July
2020 cash changes 2021
Cash and cash equivalents £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investments 11,811 (10,861) - 950
Cash atbank and on deposit 40,373 (11,560) - 28,813
52,184 (22,421) - 29,763
Borrowings
Debt due within one year (1,944) 1,969 (2,050) (2,025)
Debt due afterone year (32,507) - 2,050 (30,457)
(34,451) 1,969 - (32,482)
17,733 (20,452) - 2,719)
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Principal Accounting Policies

The following principal accounting policies adopted, havebeen applied consistently in both the currentand prior
yearin dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the Group’s financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
FRS 102. They have also been prepared in accordance with the ‘carried forward’ powers and duties of previous
legislation (Furtherand Higher Education Act 1992 and the Higher Education Act 2004) and the new powers of
the Higher Educationand Research Act 2017 during the transition periodto 31 July 2019, the Royal Charter, the
Accounts Direction issued by the Office for Students (OfS), the Terms and conditions of funding for higher
educationinstitutions issued by the Office for Students and the Terms and conditions of Research England Grant.

The University is a public benefit entity and therefore has applied the relevant public benefit requirement of the
applicable UK laws and accounting standards.

The Group and parent University’s activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance, and position, are set out in the Strategic Report which forms part of the Directors’ Report. The
Directors’ Report also describes the financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity positionand borrowing
facilities.

The financial statements havebeen prepared on a going concernbasis which the Board of Governors consider to
be appropriate for the following reasons:

Detailed Cash flow and covenant compliance forecasts have been prepared forthe next 12 months to the end of
November2022 which indicate that, taking into account the plausible but potentially severe downsides, the Group
and Parent University will have sufficientliquid assets to meet their liabilities as they fall due.

In reachingthis conclusion that the Group and Parent University is a going concern, the Board of Governors has
also takeninto account budgetand in year financial management information and current recruitmentdata for
2021/22.

We will continue to monitor the position carefully over the nextfew months.
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The principal risks to successful financial delivery in 2021/22 relate to meeting student recruitment targets,
affordability of capital investment needs, regulatory changes to post-18 education fees and funding and the
financial turnaround of South Bank Colleges.

Aftertakingall of these matters into consideration, the Board of Governors is confident that the Group and parent
University will be in compliance with its debt covenants even in plausible but potentially severe downside
scenarios and will havesufficient funds to continue to meettheir liabilities as they falldue foratleast 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statements (the going concern assessment period) and therefore have
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the University's accounting policies.

Consolidation of accounts

The financial statements incorporate the financial statements of London South Bank University and its subsidiary
undertakings; South Bank University Enterprises Limited (SBUEL), South Bank Colleges and SW4 Catering
Limited, a subsidiary of South Bank Colleges.

The University sponsors South Bank Academies, the funds of South Bank Academies are restricted to its own
purpose and will not be available to the creditors of the University, for example in the event of the University’s
insolvency. If South Bank Academies were to become insolvent, the University would not receive its assets or
reserves. Therefore, the accounts of South Bank Academies are notconsolidated into the University accounts.

Consolidation of subsidiaries is based on the equity method. Intragroup loans or balances are recognised at far
value.

Income recognition
Income from the sale of goods and services is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Incomeand Expenditure
when the goods orservices are supplied to the external customers, or theterms ofthe contracthave been satisfied.

Fee income is stated gross and credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure over the
period in which students are studying. Where the amount of the tuition fee is reduced by a discount for prompt
payment, income receivable is shown net of the discount. Bursaries and scholarships are accounted for as gross
expenditure and not deducted from income.

Revenue Government grants, including funding council block and research grants from government sources are
recognised within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure over the periods in which the
University recognises therelated costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Where part ofa govemment
grant is deferred, it is recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within
one yearand due aftermorethanone yearas appropriate.

Other grants and donations from non-government sources, including research grants from non-govemment
sources, are recognised within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure when the University i
entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of
performancerelated conditions is deferred onthe Balance Sheetand released to the Statement of Comprehensive
Incomeand Expenditure in line with such conditions being met.

Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful economic life of the asset. Other
capital grants are recognised in income when the University is entitled to funds subjectto any performance related
conditions being met.

Donations and endowments with donor-imposed restrictions are recognised within the Statement of
Comprehensive Incomeand Expenditure when the University is entitled to theincome. Income is reta ined within
the restrictive reserve until such a time that it is utilised in line with such restrictions at whichpointthe income is
released to general reserves through a reserve transfer. Any realised gains or losses from dealing in the related
assets are retained within the restricted reserve in the Balance Sheet and reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Incomeand Expenditure.
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Donations with no restrictions are recorded within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure when
the University is entitled to the income.

Investment income is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Incomeand Expenditure ona receivable basis.

Intangible assets

Software costing less than £10,000 per individual item or group of items is written off to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the year of acquisition. All other software is capitalised as an
intangible assetand amortised at 25%per annum.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Certain items of
fixed assets that have been revalued to fair value onthe date oftransitiontothe 2015 FE HE SORP, are measuredon
the basis of deemed cost, being therevalued amountat the date of thatrevaluation. Properties are not carried under

the valuationmethod and therefore regularrevaluations ofassetsare notundertaken by the University.

Freehold land and buildings, longleasehold and short leasehold premises are included in the financial statements
at cost or valuation together with subsequent refurbishment expenditure, less amounts written off by way of
depreciation. Freehold land is not depreciated. Finance costs that are directly attributable to the construction of
land and buildings arenot capitalised.

Assets in the course of construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of Quantity Surveyors’ certificates
and other direct costs incurred to theend of the year. They are notdepreciated until they are brought intouse.

Equipment costing less than £10,000 per individual item or group of items is written off to the Statement of
Comprehensive Incomeand Expenditurein the year ofacquisition. All other equipment is capitalised.

Depreciationis provided on costin equal annual instalments over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Therates
of depreciationare as follows:

Freehold buildings 2% perannum
Longleaseholds Period of lease
Short leaseholds Period of lease
Buildingimprovements 6.7% perannum
IT equipment 25% perannum
Other equipmentand motor vehicles 20% per annum
Furniture 6.7% perannum

As LSBU is not a research-intensive University, all equipment purchased with research grants is a ssumed to have
a life equal to the length of the research project and will be depreciated accordingly. Assets purchased using
research funds, including computers and software, costing less than £10,000 per individual item or group ofrelated
items are written off in the year of acquisition in line with the University’s normal accounting policy regarding
depreciation of fixed assets. All otheritems are capitalised and depreciated over the remaining life of the research
project.

Freehold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. No depreciation is chargedon
assets in the course of construction.

At each financial yearend the carryingamounts oftangible assets are reviewed to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered a diminution in value. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount oftheasset, which is the higher ofits fairvalueandits value in use, is estimated in order to determine the
extent oftheimpairment loss.
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Investments
Investments in subsidiaries and associated undertakings are shown in the University’s Balance Sheet at cost less
any provision for impairmentin their value.

Endowment Asset Investments are included in the Balance Sheet at fair value.

Stocks
Stocksare valuedatthelowerof costandnetrealisable value.

Pension costs

The University contributes to the Teachers’ Pensions Scheme (England and Wales), the London Pension Fund
Authority Pension Fund (LPFAPF) and the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS). These schemes are
administered by Teachers’ Pensions (on behalf of the Department for Education), the London Pension Fund
Authority and USS Ltd respectively andareall of the defined benefit type.

Where the University is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities in a scheme on a
reasonable and consistent basis, it accounts as if the scheme were a defined contribution scheme, so that the cost
is equalto thetotal of contributions payable in the year. The TPS and USS are multi-employer schemes for which
is not possible to identify the University’s share of assets and are therefore reported as if they were defined
contribution schemes, so that the cost is equalto the total of contributions payable in the year. Contractual
obligations relating to these schemes including any a greements to pay additional contributions to fund a deficit are
calculated at net presentvalueandare included in provisions.

For other defined benefit schemes, including the LPFAPF, the University’s obligation is to provide the agreed
benefits to current and former employees, and actuarial risk (that benefits will cost more or less than expected)
and investment risk (that return onassets set asideto fund the benefits will differ from expectations) are borne, in
substance, by the University. The University recognises a liability forits obligations under defined benefit plans
netof planassets. This net defined benefit liability is measured as the estimated amount of benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, discounted to determine its present value,
less the fair value (at bid price) of plan assets. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. Where the calculation results in a net asset, recognition of theasset is limited to the
extent to which the University is able to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or
through refundsfrom the plan.

The University has a defined contribution pension scheme for employees of subsidiary companies SBUEL, and
SW4 Catering Ltd. From April202 1, the LPFA pension schemeis closed tonew professional services staffacross
the group and those staff are entitled to join the defined contribution scheme. The University pays contributions
into a separate legal entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations
for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement in
the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised as anexpense in the
yearin which the employees render service to the University. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as
the additional amount the University expectsto pay asa result ofunused entitlement.

Taxation status

The University is an exempt charity within the meaning of part 3 of the Charities Act 2011, and as suchis a
‘charity’ within the meaning of Section 467 ofthe Corporation Tax Act (CTA)2010. Accordingly, the Universiy
is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by
Section 478 ofthe CTA 2010 and Section 256C of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that
such income or gains are applied to exclusively charitable purposes.

The University receives no similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is
included in the costs of suchinputs. Any irrecoverable VAT allocated to tangible fixed assets is included in their
cost.
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The University’s subsidiary company SBUEL is subjectto corporation tax and is therefore required to account for
deferred tax and currenttax.

South Bank Colleges is considered to passthe test set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, South
Bank Colleges is potentially exempt from taxation in respectofincome or capital gains received within categories
covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Acts
1992, to theextent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. It is partially exempt
inrespect of Value Added Tax, so it can only recover a minor elementof VAT charged onits inputs. Irrecoverable
VAT on inputsisincludedin the costs of suchinputsand added to the costoftangible fixed assets as a pproprate,
where the inputsthemselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

Deferred tax is provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation at the Balancesheet dateto pay
more tax, ora right topay less tax, ata future date, atrates expected to apply when they crystallise based on current
rates and law. Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation
computations in periods different from those in which they are included in financial statements. Deferred tax assets
arerecognised to the extent they are regarded as more likely than not they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are notdiscounted.

Agency arrangements

Funds the institution receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body are excluded from the
income and expenditure of the institution where the institution is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal
economic benefit related to thetransaction.

Leases

Operating lease rentals are charged to income in equal annual amounts over the leaseterm.

Leases in which the University assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset
are classified as finance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease and the corresponding lease
liabilities are initially recognised at an amount equal to the lower of the fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments at inception ofthe lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The Financecharge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constantperiodic
rate of intereston theremaining balance of the liability.

Maintenance
Maintenance expenditure is chargedto the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the period in
which itis incurred.

Refurbishment expenditure on a property is deemed to be of a capital nature if it either enhances the property’s
operational capabilities, orif it significantly upgrades the mechanical or electrical infrastructure of that property.
To the extent that the expenditure is of a capitalnature, itis capitalised and written off over its useful economic
life. Refurbishment expenditure thatdoes not meet either of these criteria is treated as maintenance expenditure.

Reserves

Reserves are allocated between restricted and unrestricted reserves. Restricted endowment reserves include
balances which, through endowment to the University, are held as a permanently restricted fund as the University
must hold the fund in perpetuity. Other restricted reserves include balances through which the donor has designated
a specific purposeandthereforethe University is restricted in the use ofthese funds.

Where fixed assets were revalued prior to the implementation of FRS 102, the gain or loss on revaluation was
credited or debited to the revaluation reserve. Where depreciation on the revalued amount exceeds the
corresponding depreciation based on historical cost, the excess is transferred annually from the capital reserve to
the incomeand expenditure reserve.

The pension reserve represents the pension liability in respect of the defined benefit pension schemes (see note
26).
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Cash flows and liquid resources

Cash flows comprise increases or decreases in cash. Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand
and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if they are in practiceavailable within twenty-four hours without
penalty.

Liquid resourcescomprise assets which in normal practiceare generally convertible to cash and cash equivalents.
They includeterm deposits heldaspartofthe University ’s treasury managementactivities. They exclude anysuch
assets held as endowmentasset investments.

Financialinstruments

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and it is intended either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Judgements and estimates

Material Judgements and estimates

Accounting policies are supplemented by estimation techniques where judgement is required to establish the
monetary amounts ofassets, liabilities, gains, and losses included in the financial statementsand the estimatesand
associated assumptions are believed to be reasonable and prudent. In all cases these judgements and estimates are
either based on past experience or are prepared by qualified advisors. In preparing these financial statements
management have made the followingjudgements and estimates:

The present value of the London Pension Fund Authority Pension Fund (LPFAPF) and defined benefit liability
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost for pensions include the discount rate, salary, pension and price
increase and any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount
of'the pension liability.

Land was revalued on 31 July 2014 resulting in a one-off adjustment to increase the deemed cost of land by
£41,946,000. The valuation was prepared by qualified valuers in accordance with the Red Book. The fair value
depends on theclassification ofassets and a number of material assumptions including the condition of properties,
ground, and services, estimated market value, and estimated rental income at thedate of valuation.

A determination is undertaken to identify whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group’s tangble
assets. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected
future financial performance oftheasset and where it is a component of a larger cash generating unit, the viability
and expected future performance of that unit.

As of 1 February2019, South Bank Colleges acquired the assets and liabilities of Lambeth College. In line with
FRS102 land and buildings were revaluedto fair value using indicesas used by professional valuers. These assets
will be held at deemed costsand depreciated over theiruseful economic life in line with the accounting policy for
fixed assets.

Non-Material Judgements and Estimates

The Provision forbad debtis calculated based onthe University’s past experience of collecting student and other
debt. It is estimated that, at the date of signing the financial statements and after making deductions where a
repayment arrangement has been agreed with the debtor, 90% ofremaining debt will not be recoverable.

A determination has been made as to whether leases entered into by the Group either as a lessor or a lessee are
operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of
ownership have beentransferred from thelessorto thelessee on a lease-by-leasebasis.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling either at
year-end rates or, where there are related forward foreign exchange contracts, at contract rates. The resulting
exchange differences are dealt with in the determination of income and expenditure for the financial year.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised in the financial statements when the University has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount ofthe obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is discounted to present value where the time value of money is material The
discountrate used reflects current marketassessments of thetime value of money and reflects any risks specific to the liability.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way ofa note, when the definition ofa provisionis not met and includes three scenarios: possible rather
than a present obligation; a possible rather than a probable outflow of economic benefits; the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient relia bility.

Contingent assets arise where an event has taken place that gives the University a possible asset whose existencewill only be confirmed by

the occurrence or otherwise uncertain future events not wholly within the control of theUniversity. These are disclosed by way of a note, where
there is a probable, ratherthana present assetarising froma past event.
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Notes to theaccounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

1. Tuition fees and education contracts
Full-time homeand EU students
Full-time international students
Part-time students
Othercourses
Strategic Health Authority education contracts

2. Funding body grants

Recurrentgrant

Non recurrent grants Specific grants
Pension Liabilities
Other grants

3. Research grants and contracts
Research councils
UK based charities
European Commission
Other grants and contracts
Knowledge Transfer Partnerships

4. Otherincome

Residenceand cateringincome
Otherincome

5. Investmentincome
Intereston short term investments
Endowmentincomeand interestreceivable

6. Donations and endowments
Unrestricted donations

Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
100,443 86,594 97,115 83,748
18,908 14,670 18,908 14,670
16,085 15,630 16,085 15,630
2,238 1,992 2,238 1,992
1,888 4,756 1,888 4,756
139,562 123,642 136,234 120,796
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
35,286 34,367 16,182 15,757
2,603 1,190 - -
191 136 191 136
811 888 811 888
38,891 36,581 17,184 16,781
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
760 832 760 832
361 411 361 411
1,336 1,330 1,336 1,330
3,410 2,719 1,647 1,617
48 172 48 172
5,915 5,464 4,152 4,362
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
6,324 8,061 6,319 8,027
7,346 9,890 1,954 3,395
13,670 17,951 8,273 11,422
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
23 11 23 11
37 297 37 289
60 308 60 300
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
746 552 24 11

Donationsincludethe estimated marketvalueof SBC's rent free occupations of its Lambeth College premises in Brixton.
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

7. Grantand Feeincome
The source of grant and fee income, includedin notes 1 to 3 isas follows:

Consolidated University

2021 2020 2021 2020

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Grant income from the OfS 167,390 146,127 145,684 126,328
Grant income from otherbodies 7,992 6,679 6,229 5,577
Fee income forresearchawards (exclusive of Vat) 217 215 217 215
Fee income from non-qualifying courses (exclusiveof Vat) 560 3,164 560 317
Fee income for taught awards (exclusive of Vat) 8,209 9,502 4,880 9,502

184,368 165,687 157,570 141,939

Consolidatec
2021 2020
8. Staff No. No.
Average numbers by major category:
Academic staff 872 915
Studentsupport staff 151 125
Othersupportstaff 720 681
1,743 1,721
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
Costs £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Wages andsalaries 86,935 77,625 69,903 58,485
Socialsecurity costs 8,175 7,796 6,799 6,417
Employers'pension contributions 19,468 18,200 17,421 16,311
114,578 103,621 94,123 81,213

Staffcosts forthe yearincludecosts arising from redundancies of £1.8m (2020 £0.4m) of which £0.5m was paid during
theyearand £1.3m was accrued

Access and Participation

University
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Access Investment 1,182 44
Financial Support - -
Disability Support (excluding expenditureincluded in the two categories above) - -
Researchand Evaluation 5 -
1,187 44
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

9. Remuneration of Board of Governors and higher paid employees

A. Governors

The University's governors do notreceiveremuneration from the University in their capacity as governors.

The salaries and pension contributions below thereforerelate entirely to staff governors and to sums received by them
in their capacity as employees of the University.

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Salaries 437 467
Pension contributions or paymentsin lieu if pension contributions 71 77
508 544

Governors are paid expenses for attending meetings and other matters directly related to their duties astrustees. In2021
one governor was paid total expenses of £295 (2020: four governors were paid total expenses of£1,974) for travel
and subsistence.

B.Determining pay of senior staff

Pay of senior executives, including the Vice Chancellor, is determined by a Remuneration Committee composed of
Independent governors, and chaired by an experienced Independent governor. The Vice Chancellorisnot a member of
the Remuneration Committee.

The Committee, in making its determination, considers remuneration levels in a number of comparable institutions, but
also more widely in the Sector; it seeks to ensure, based on good performance, that remuneration in LSBU is competitive
and comparable to those comparator Institutions. The Committee also considers as a key input the level of pay increase
that has been made to staff generally. The Committee further considers a report on the performance of senior executives
against individual measurable objectives and may award individual bonuses of up to 10% and a group bonus of up to
8%.

Furtherinformationis provided in the Annual Remuneration Report onpage 32 onwards

C. Emoluments of the Vice Chancellor 2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Salary 238 238
Accommodation allowance 10 10
Performance related pay 33 30
Taxable benefits 1 1
Pension scheme contributions or payments in lieu of pension contributions 35 35
317 314

The Vice Chancelloris the highest paid Governor.
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

The Vice Chancellor’s basic salary is 6.06 (2020: 6.23) times the median pay of staff across the organisation, where the
medianpayis calculated ona full- time equivalent basis for the salaries paid by the providerto its sta ff.

The Vice Chancellor’s total remuneration is 6.89 (2020: 6.94) times the median total remuneration of staff, where the
mediantotal remuneration is calculated on a full-time equivalentbasis for the salaries paid by the provider to its sta ff.

The calculation ofthese ratios comply with the draft 2020/21 OfS guidance.

D. Remuneration of other higher paid staff

Certain employees, including the Vice Chancellor, received basic salary (excluding bonus, benefits and pension
contributions) in excess of £100,000 during the year. Five of these employees accrued benefits under defined benefit

pension schemes during theyear (2020:7). These employees are groupedas follows:

Consolidated and University

2021 2020

No. No.

£105,000t0 £109,999 - 2
£115,000t0 £119,999 2 2

£120,000to0 £124,999 1 -

£125,000t0 £129,999 1 1
£140,000to0 £144,999 1 1
£145,000to0 £149,999 2 1
£150,000to0 £154,999 1 1
£160,000to £164,999 - 1
£235,000t0 £239,999 1 1
9 10

E. Key management personnel

Key Management personnel include members of the Group Executive, being those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities ofthe University. This includes compensation (including
salary and benefits in kind but excludesemployers pension contributions). Members of the University Executive are listed
on page 3 of these Financial Statements.

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Key management personnel 1,409 1,066

The two years are notcomparable due to changes in personnel.
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
10a. Other operating expenses £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Academic 17,445 15,407 12,616 14,672
Academic support 9,275 7,368 9,275 7,368
Othersupport 10,632 5,719 10,629 5,717
Premises 14,996 14,723 13,249 14,723
Residenceand catering 2,731 3975 2,731 3975
Otherexpenses 10,178 16,788 6,344 11,007
65,257 63,980 54,844 57,462
Otheroperating expenses are stated after charging:
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Auditors' remuneration
External audit KPMGLLP 130 100 84 76
Other services KPMGLLP 64 79 51 46
Rentalsunderoperating leases: Plant and machinery 172 279 143 225
Auditors' remuneration is disclosed netof VAT
10b. Access and Participation University
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Access Investment (i) 1,275 3,671
Financial Support 551 446
Disability Support 296 251
Researchand Evaluation 97 28
2,219 4,396

(1) £1,182k (2020: £3,111k) of these costs are already included in the overall staff costs figures included in the financial

statements, see note 8.

11.Taxation

A deferred tax asset has not beenrecognised in respect of timing differences relating to capital allowances and trading
losses as there is insufficient evidence thattheasset willbe recovered.

The amountoftheasset not recognisedis £13.8k (2020: £17.6k). The assetwould be recovered if suitable taxable profits

were to arise in the future against which theasset could be offset.

12.Interest and other finance costs
Loans interest
Net charge on pensionscheme

Consolidate( University

2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,853 1,933 1,853 1,933
2,964 2,987 2,484 2,484
4,817 4,920 4,337 4,417
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

13.Intangible assets

Software

Costor valuation
At August2020
Additions
Transfer

At 31 July2021

Amortisation charge
At August2020
Charge fortheyear
At 31 July2021

Net book value
At 31 July 2021

At 31 July 2020

Consolidated and University

Assetsin
course of
Software  construction Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
4,140 123 4,263
- (117) 117)
4,140 6 4,146
(4,126) - 4,126)
12) a12)
(4,138) - (4,138)
2 6 8
14 123 137
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

14.Tangiblefixed assets (Consolidated) Restated*

Long Short |
leasehold  leasehold .F 1.xtures, Assetsin

Freehold Freehold landand landand fittings and course of Fixed assets

land buildings buildings  buildings *4 PMENT ¢4 pgtruction total
Cost or valuation £'000 £'000 £'000
At August 2020%* 88,965 213,178 49,668 44 68,035 33,688 453,578
Additions - - - - 1,498 50,514 52,012
Disposal - - - - - (403) 403)
Transfer - - - - 641 (524) 117
At31July2021 88,965 213,178 49,668 44 70,174 83,275 505,304
Depreciation
At August2020 - (69,931) (33,133) 37) (42,693) - (145,794)
Charge fortheyear - (5,593) (1,243) - (4,403) - (11,239)
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 July2021 - (75,524)  (34,376) 37) (47,096) - (157,033)
Net book value
At 31 July2021 88,965 137,654 15,292 7 23,078 83,275 348,271
At 31 July 2020 88,965 143,247 16,535 7 25,342 33,688 307,784
Tangiblefixed assets (University) Restated*

Long Short _
leasehold leasehold .Flfxtures, Assetsin

Freehold Freehold landand landand flttlflgs and courseof  Fixedassets

land buildings buildings buildings equipment ., ruction total
Cost or valuation £'000 £'000 £'000
At August2020%* 64,368 172,050 47,210 44 66,836 28,718 379,226
Additions - - - - 1,498 43,521 45,019
Disposals - - - - - (403) 403)
Transfer - - - - 641 (524) 117

59



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDE61585-459F-4AF4-ACC6-4E870579CC8A

At 31July2021 64,368 172,050 47,210 44 68,975 71,312 423,959
Depreciation

At August2020 - (68,409)  (33,058) 37) (42,016) - (143,520)
Charge fortheyear - (4,762) (1,194) - (4,009) - (9,965)
Disposals - - - - - - -
At31July2021 - (73,171)  (34,252) 37) (46,025) - (153,485)
Net book value

At31July2021 64,368 98,879 12,958 7 22,950 71,312 270,474
At 31July2020 64,368 103,641 14,152 7 24,820 28,718 235,706

14 B Restatement of Tangible Fixed Assets

2019-20 tangible fixed assets have been restated to include £4,58 2k of assets under construction relatingto 2020 not
accruedin prior year financial statements.

Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021
15.Investments Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
CVCP Properties plc 38 38 38 38

The University holds 0.8% ofthe £1 ordinary shares of CVCP Properties plc. The principal activity ofthe company is
leasing of buildings, with the majority oftenants being Higher Education organisations.

Details of the companies, allincorporated in England and Wales, in which London South Bank University holds
directly orindirectly more than 20% of thenominal value ofany class of share capitalare asfollows:

South Bank University Enterprises Limited

The University holds 100% ofthe £1 ordinary shares of South Bank University Enterprises Limited (SBUEL). Five
of these shares have beenheld since 5 February 1988 with a further five issuedon 19 July2012and fiveon 28 April2021.

South Bank Colleges

The University is the sole member of South Bank Colleges, a private company limited by guaranteeand incorporated
on 1st August 2018 and its results are fully consolidated in these accounts. South Bank Colleges took overthe
operations of Lambeth College from 1st February 2019 and has two subsidiaries, SW4 Catering Ltd

and South Bank Skills Ltd ( a dormant company incorporated on 23rd March 2021).

Other investments

All otherinvestments represent less than20% of theissued sharecapital in each caseand are therefore not
individually disclosed.
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16.Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade debtors 30,293 19,122 29,349 18,192
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 16,925 13,392
Otherdebtors 403 799 354 749
Prepayments and accrued income 4,000 3,487 2,767 2,018
34,696 23,408 49,395 34,351
17.Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (Restated)
Consolidated University
2021 2020* 2021 2020%
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bankand otherloans 2,025 1,944 2,025 1,944
Trade creditors 1,618 1,648 1,163 714
Other creditors 3,392 2,714 2,884 2,563
Socialsecurity and other taxation payable 2,380 2,282 1,699 1,625
Accruals and deferred income 52,686 38,558 46,776 31,938
62,101 47,146 54,547 38,784

17 B Restatement of Creditors

2019-20 accruals and deferred income havebeenrestated to include £4,582k accruals relating to capital work carried
outin 2020 butnotaccruedin prior year financial statements.

18.Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bankand otherloans 30,457 32,507 30,457 32,507
Deferred income 37,641 36,601 19,696 20,445
68,098 69,108 50,153 52,952
19.Borrowings Consolidated and University
2021 2020
Bank loans arerepayable as follows: £'000 £'000
Due in less thatone year (note 17) 2,025 1,944
Due between one and two years 2,076 1,979
Due betweentwo and five years 6,631 6,143
Due after five years 21,750 24,385
Totaldue afterone year (note 18) 30,457 32,507
Total 32,482 34,451
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Details of bankloans
Lender Term Interestrate Security 2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Barclays bank 25yearsto 2032 5.67% fixed 3,265 3,576
Barclays bank To April 2029 5.25% fixed 5,000 5,000
McLaren
Barclays bank 23.25yearsto2032  [5.44% fixed House 6,086 6,512
0.225% over
Barclays bank 23 yearsto 2032 Libor 3,192 3,489
5.16-5.2%fixed
Barclays bank 16 yearsto 2035 plus 1.65% margin 12,381 12,939
Dante Road
Allied Irish Bank 26.5 yearsto 2027 6.67% fixed Halls 2,358 2,735
Salix Variable Interest free Unsecured 200 200
32,482 34,451
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021
20 Provisions for liabilities: Consolidated Obligation LPFA defined Enhanced
to fund deficit benefit pension Total
on USS pension  obligation
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balanceat1 August 2020 708 181,048 1,830 183,586
Utilised duringthe year - (7,263) - (7,263)
Chargedto comprehensive income and expenditure 321 10,956 (101) 11,176
Balanceat31 July 2021 1,029 184,741 1,729 187,499

The obligation to fund the past deficit on the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS) arises from the contractual
obligation with the pension scheme to deficit payments in accordance with the deficit recovery plan. In calculating this
provision, management have estimated future staff levels within the USS scheme for the duration of the contractual
obligation and salary inflation. Key assumptions are in note 28 B.

The enhanced pension provisionrelates to the costof staff whoretired from Lambeth College Corporation withenhanced
pension provisions between 1995/96 and 2006/7. The value of the provision is calculated in accordance with guidelines

issued by the Association for Colleges.

University

Balanceat1 August2020
Utilised duringthe year

Chargedto comprehensive income and expenditure

Balanceat31 July 2021

21 Endowmentreserves

Balanceat1 August
Increase in market value of investments
Balanceat31 July

22 Unrestricted reserves

Revaluation reserve

Balanceat1 August

Transferto incomeand expenditure reserves
beingexcess depreciation on revalued assets
Balanceat31 July

Obligation LPFA
to fund defined
deficiton benefit
USS pension  obligation Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
708 154,089 154,797
- (6,560) (6,560)
321 11,393 11,714
1,029 158,922 159,951

Consolidated and University

Restricted  Restricted 2021 2020
Permanent Expendable Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
724 138 862 855
75 14 89 7
799 152 951 862
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
25,257 25,951 25,257 25,951
(681) (694) (681) (694)
24,576 25,257 24,576 25,257
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

23 Cash and cash equivalents - analysis of changes in net debt
atl August Cashflows Othernon- at31July

2020 cash changes 2021

Consolidated £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investments 11,811 (10,861) - 950
Cash atbank and on deposit 40,373 (11,560) - 28,813
52,184 (22,421) - 29,763

Borrowings

Debt due within one year (1,944) 1,969 (2,050) (2,025)
Debt due afterone year (32,507) - 2,050 (30,457)
(34,451) 1,969 - (32,482)
17,733 (20,452) - 2,719)

Investments comprise funds held in fixed term deposits for periods exceeding threemonths at31 July 2021. Cash
atbank and ondeposit comprise funds held in bankand on deposit notexceeding 3 months.

24 Capital commitments

Provision hasnot been made for the following capital commitments as at 31 July 2021

Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Commitments contractedat31 July 56,104 56,002 28,092 35,142

25 Contingentliabilities

Funds amounting to £4.4m received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) are subject to conditions linked
to future estates development for SBC to delivera viable, sustainable, high quality, relevant and diverse offer fromLevel 1

to Level 6 learners and employers across the localarea with a college presence in Brixton and Clapham and/or Vauxhall
without a requirement for government funding to support operating losses.

The University’s subsidiary, South Bank Colleges, has received a pre-action claim for reimbursement of costs by a
developer in respect of the Vauxhall development project undertaken by South Bank College’s predecessor Lambeth
College Corporation. The governing body believes that any claim is unlikely to succeed and cannotbe financially quantified

atthe date of signing, and to the best of its knowledge and belief it is satisfied that no provision is necessary in respect of
this claim.
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021
26 Lease obligations

At 31 July 2021 the University and the Group were committed to making the following future minimum lease
payments in respectof operating leases on land and buildings:

Balanceat31 July

Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Expiring within one year 40 16 - -
Expiring within two and five years 58 - - -
Expiringin overfive years 438 449 438 449
536 465 438 449
27 Amounts disbursed as agents
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
Teacher training bursaries £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balanceat1 August 5) - (5) -
Funding council grant 6 19 6 19
Disbursed to students - 24) - 24)
Balanceat31 July 1 o) 1 o)
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
Apprenticeship employerincentive payments £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balanceat1 August - - - -
Fundsreceived - 32 - 32
Disbursed to employers - (32) - (32)
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Notes to the accounts
Yearended 31 July 2021

28 Pension arrangements
Different categories of staff were eligible to join one of five differentschemes:

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)

Universities Superannuation Scheme Limited (USS)

London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA) Pension Fund

London South Bank University Defined Contribution Scheme, administered by Aviva.
National Employment Savings Trust (NEST)

NOW Pensions

A. The Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme. The regulations under which the TPS
operates are the Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 2010. These regulations apply to teachers in schools and other educational
establishments in England and Wales including teachers and lecturers in establishments of further and higher education.
Membership is automatic for full-timeteachers or lecturers and from 1 January 2007 automatic too for teachers or lecturers in pat-
time employment following appointment or change of contract. Teachers and lecturers are able to optoutofthe TPS.

Retirement and other pension benefits are provided for in the Superannuation Act 1972, paid outof moniesprovided by Parliament.
Teachers’ contributions are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above act. The Teachers’ Pension
Regulations require that an annualaccount, the Teachers’ Budgetingand Valuation Account, be kept of receipts and expenditure,
includingthe cost of pension increases.

From 1 April 2001, the accounthas been credited with a realrate ofreturn, which is equivalentto assuming that the balance in the
Accountis invested in notional investments thatproducethatrealrate of return.

- The last valuation of the TPS was as of 31 March2016 and in accordance with The Public Service Pensions
(Valuations and Employer Cost CAP) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by the Department on 5
March 2019. The Key results ofthe valuationare:

- Uncorrected employer contribution rate effective over the implementation period: 19.5% of pensionable pay. This
is an increase of 3.1% on the current contribution rate. This increase is primarily due to the reduction in the discount
rate (knownasthe SCAPE rate)to 2.4%pa above CPI with effectfrom 1 April2019.

- Corrected employer contributionrate payable over the implementation period: 22.8% of pensionable pay. This is an
increase of 6.4% on the current contribution rate. This rate is calculated in the same way as the uncorrected employer
contribution rate except that the accrualrate of the 2015 Scheme is assumed to be improved from 1 April2019 to the
extent necessary such that the employer contribution correction cost equals the target cost ofthe scheme.

At 31 July 2021 the University Group had 1203 active members participating in the scheme. During the year contributions were
paid by the Group and charged to the Income and Expenditure account at a current rate of 23.6% (2020: 16.48% in August 2019
then 23.6% from September 2019) of salaries and the Group’s contribution to the TPS for the year was £7,807,873 (2020:
£7,104,562). Employees paid tiered contributionrates which ranged from 7.4%-11.7%, depending on earnings.
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Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 'Retirement Benefits', the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The University is
unable to identify its share ofthe underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme. Accordingly, the University has accounted for its
contributions as if it were a defined contribution scheme.

B. The Universities Superannuation Scheme

The University participates in the Universities Superannuation Scheme. The scheme is a hybrid pension scheme, providing defined
benefits as well as defined contribution benefits. The assetsof the scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. Because
of the mutual nature of the scheme, the assets are not attributed to individual institutions and a scheme-wide contributingrate is set.
The University is therefore exposed to actuarial risks associated with other institutions’ employees and is unable to identify its share
of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. As required by section 28 of FRS102
’Employee Benefits’, the University accounts for the scheme as if it were a wholly defined contribution scheme. Since the University
has entered into an agreement that determines how each employer within the scheme will fund the overall deficit, the University
recognises a liability forthe contributions payable thatrelate to the deficit and movementin this provision is treated as an expense.

Since the institution cannot identify its share of Retirement Income Builder section ofthe scheme assets and liabilities, the following
disclosures reflect those relevant for the section as a whole.

The latest available complete actuarial valuation ofthe RetirementIncome Builderisat 31 March 2018 (the valuation date), which
was carried outusing the projected unit method. A valuation as of 31 March2020is underway but not yetcomplete.

The 2018 Valuation wasthe fifth valuation of the scheme under the scheme-specific funding regime introduced by the Pensions Act
2004, whichrequires schemesto adopta statutory funding objective, whichis to havesufficientand appropriate assets to cover their
technical provisions. At the Valuation date, the value of the assets in the scheme were £63.7 billion and the value of the scheme’s
technical provisions was £67.3 billion, indicating a shortfallof £3.6 billion anda fundingratio 0f95%.

The key financial assumptions used in the 2018 valuation are described below. More detail is set out in the Statement of Funding
Principles.

Defined benefit liability numbers for the scheme have been produced using the following assumptions:

Years 1-10: CPI+0.14% reducing linearly to CPI-0.73%
Years 11-20: CPI +2.52%reducing linearly to CPI+1.55% by year21

Discount rate (forward rates) Years21+: CPI+1.55%
Term dependentrates in line with the difference between the Fixed Interestand
Pension increases Index Linked yield curves, less 1.3%p.a.

The main demographic assumption used relates to the mortality assumptions. These assumptions are based on analysis of the
scheme's experience carried out as part of the 2018 actuarial valuation. The mortality assumptions used in these figures are as
follows:

Pre-retirement: 71% of AMCO0 (duration 0) formales and 112% of AFCO00 (duration 0) for females.
Post-retirement: 97.6% of SAPS SINMA 'light' formales and 102.7% of RFVO0O for females.

Future improvements |CMI_ 2017 with a smoothing parameter of 8.5 and a long term improvement rateof 1.8%pa
formalesand1.6%pa for females.

The current life expectancies onretirement at age 65 are:

Males Female
Years Years
2018 2017 2018 2017
Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation
Current pensioners (currently 65 years) 244 24.6 259 2.1
Future pensioners (currently 45 years) 26.3 26.6 27.7 27.9
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A new deficit recovery plan was putin place at thestart ofthe 2018 valuation, which requires payment of2% of salaries over the
period from October2019to September2021 at whichpointthe rate will increase to 6%. The2021 deficit liability reflects this
plan. The liability figures havebeen produced using the following assumptions:

2020 2019
Discount Rate 1.50% 2.10%
Pensionable Salary Growth 3.00% 3.90%

At 31 July 2021 the Group had 38 (2020: 40) active members participating in the scheme. The total credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is £320,638 (2020: £934,964). The employer contributionrate was 21.1% from October
2019 andwill rise to 23.7% from 1stOctober2021. (2020: 19.5% from 1st April2019 and21.1% from 1 October2019).

In September2020, the Trustee of the USS Pension Scheme (USS) launched a consultation with Universities UK on key aspects
of'the scheme's 2020 valuation. The scope of this exercise covers a wide range of potential outcomes - reflectingissues still to be
resolved on employer supportas wellas uncertainties for the higher education sector and financial markets in general - but, based
on the proposals putforward, the Trustees have indicated thatthe fund's deficit at31 March 2020 could range from between
£9.8bnand £17.9bn.

This would represent a significantdeterioration from the £3.6bn deficit established under the 20 18 valuation (and against which
the current recovery plan is set) and a returnto the levels of shortfall experienced under the previous 2017 valuation (£1 1.8bn).
At this stage, an outcome is far from agreed and the USS Trusteehas until 30 June 2021 to conclude the valuation. As an early
indication of the scale of impact though, it has been estimated thatthe cost of continuing to offer current benefits in this context
could reachbetween 40.8%to 67.9% ofpayroll. However, this range is purely anillustration and is before any other measures are
considered to reduce the deficit and is still being widely debated across thesectorand by the Trustee of the Pension Scheme. For
the 2020-2 1 financial year however, this is considered a non-adjusting event.

C. The London Pension Fund

The London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA) provides members with benefits related to payandservice atrates which aredefined
underthe Local Government Pensions Scheme Regulations 2013. To finance these benefits, assets areaccumulated in the Fund and
held separately from theassets of the University.

A full triennial valuation was carried out by the scheme’s actuary Barnett Waddingham as at 31 March 2019 with the valuation
results taking into account changes to the scheme from 1 April2020. Employer contributionrates effective from 1 April2019 were
12.7% and from 1 April2020 were 15.4% for London South Bank University and 13.5%, raisingto 16.3% from 1st April2020 for
South Bank Colleges. Inaddition a plus a pastserviceadjustment expressed as a lump sum to clear thedeficit overa recovery deficit
period was paid in April2021 this payment amountedto £1.3m.

Pension costunder FRS 102

Foraccounting purposes, the scheme’s assets are measured at market value and liabilities are valued using the projected unit method
and discounted using the annualised yield on the Merrill Lynch AA rate over 15-year corporate bond index. The valuationuses
market—based assumptions and asset valuations, and represents a current valuation. It does not impact on the contribution rates set
by the trustees ofthe scheme. The principal assumptions used by the actuary were:

Consolidated and University

31-Jul-21 31-Jul-20

% per annum % per annum

Salary increase 3.00% 3.00%
Pension and price increases 2.80% 2.25%
Discountrate 1.60% 1.50%

Employees retiring on orafter 6 April2006 are pemmitted totakeanincrease in their ump sum paymenton retirement in exchange
fora reduction in their futureannual pension.
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On the adviceof ouractuaries we have made the following assumptions:
Members will exchange halfof their commutable pension for cash atretirement
Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the pension
No members will take up the optionunderthenew LGPS to pay 50% of contributions for 50% of benefits

In calculating the scheme assets and liabilities, the fund's actuaries had to make a number of assumptions about events and
circumstances in the future. These assumptions represent the best estimate of expected outcomes but it is possible that actual
outcomes will differ from those included in the accounts. Any differences between expected and actual outcomes are reported
through experience gains and losses.

Followinga pension assumption review process we believe thatthe default assumptions used by the scheme actuaries are appropriate
forthe LSBU group.

For UK defined benefit pension schemes it is common to set long term RPI inflation based on long term gilt market-implied
expectations (known as “break even RPI”), often less an inflation risk premium to allow for supply/demand factors, and for long
term CPI inflation to be set with reference to RPI inflation less a “wedge” reflecting established differences in index construction,
as there is no deep-market in CPI-linked instruments. On 4 September 2019, the UK Chancellor and the UK Statistics Authority
jointly published correspondence confirming that: a public consultationto amend the flawed RPTindex would start in January 2020
(subsequently postponed to March 2020 and ended on21 August2020), there would be no change to RPTuntil2025 at the earliest,
and The UK Statistics Authority could change RPI from 2030 without government consent, and their intention is to align RPI to
CPIH (CPIH is CPI with allowance for housing costs; the two are assumed to be similar over the long term). Following these
announcements the derivation of the CPI assumption has changed at 31 July 2020. Based on the sensitivity information provided
by the actuary, we expect the impact of this change in approach to be a c. £13m-£14m (made up of a reduction of
£16,436k fromthe change in IRP and anincrease of £30,238k from the change in RPI-CPI wedge) as the CPI assumption is now
0.2% higherthan it would have been under the previous methodology.

Life expectancy

The schemeactuaries have adopted a set of demographic assumptions that are consistent with those used for the mostrecent Fund
valuation, as at 31 March 2019, except for the CMI projection model. The post retirement mortality tables have been based on
Club Vita analysis. These base tables are then projected using the CMI_ 2020 Model, allowing for a long-termrate of
improvement of 1.25% p.a., smoothing parameter of 7.0, aninitial addition parameter of0.5% p.a. and a 2020 weighting of 25%.
Although the post retirement mortality tables adopted are consistent with the previous accounting date, the mortality improvement
projection has been updated to use the latest version of the Continuous Mortality Investigation’s model, CMI_ 2020, which was
released in March 2021. This update has been made in light of the coronavirus pandemic and reflects the latest information
available from the CMI. The new CMI_2020 Modelintroduces a “2020 weight parameter” for the mortality data in 2020 so that
the exceptional mortality experienced due to the coronavirus pandemic can be incorporated without having a disproportionate
impact on results. The view of the scheme actuaries is that placing too much weight on the 2020 mortality experience would not
be appropriate given the abnormality of the 2020 data, however, the overall outlook for best-estimate future mortality
improvements looks less positive as a result of the pandemic. Therefore they have updated to use the CMI_2020 Model with a
2020 weight parameter of 25%. At the last accounting date, the CMI 2018 Model was adopted. The effect on the Employer’s
liabilities of updating to themost recentmodel is reflected in the Change in demographic assumptions figure, and the effect on the
assumed life expectancies is demonstrated in the table below.

Life expectancy from age 65

LSBU SBC LSBU SBC LSBU SBC
31-Jul-21 31-Jul-21 31-Jul-20
afterCMI 2020update before CMI 2020 update

Retiringtoday:

Males 21.7 21.6 22 219 219 21.8
Females 24.1 24.1 243 243 242 242
Retiringin 20 years:

Males 229 22.8 233 233 232 232
Females 25.7 254 259 255 25.8 254
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Fund assets

The return on the fund, on a bid value to bid value basis, fortheyearto 31 July2021 was 15.46 %. The Allocation at 31 July

2021 1sasfollows:

Equities

Target return portfolio
Cash

Infrastructure

Property

Total fair value of assets

Net pension liability

Consolidated University
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
asat asat as at asat
31-Jul-21 31-Jul-20 31-Jul-21 31-Jul-20
£000 £000 £°000 £000
134,384 110,264 106,147 86,715
51,724 48,629 40,856 38,244
14,200 13,869 9,790 10,907
20,777 14,132 16,579 11,114
18,384 18,923 15,780 14,882
239,469 205,817 189,152 161,862

The followingamounts at 31 July 2021 related to the Group are measured in accordance with the requirements of FRS 102:

Consolidated 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Fairvalue of Employer Assets 239,469 205,817 205,757 143,869 133,771
Present value of funded obligations (414,274) (376,181) (324,227) (232,750) (234,955)
Net underfunding in funded plans (174,805) (170,364) (118,470) (88,881) (101,184)
Present value of unfunded obligations (9,936) (10,684) (10,885) (10,884) (11,565)
Net Pension Liability (184,741) (181,048) (129,355) (99,765) (112,749)
University 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Fairvalue of Employer Assets 189,152 161,862 161,649 143,869 133,771
Present value of funded obligations (338,572) (305,728) (260,964) (232,750) (234,955)
Net underfunding in funded plans (149,420) (143,866) (99,315) (88,881) (101,184)
Present value of unfunded obligations 9,502) (10,223) (10,420) (10,884) (11,565)
Net Pension Liability (158,922) (154,089) (109,735) (99,765) (112,749)

The movementfortheyearin the netpension liability is shown in note 20.
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Analysis of the amountincluded in staff costs for the year

Service cost
Enhancements to former employees
Totalopermating charge

Analysis of the amountincluded in interest payablefor
the year

Interest onthe defined liability (asset)
Administration expenses
Totalinterestcharge

Analysis of the amount recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income

Return on fund assets in excess of interest
Otheractuariallosses on assets

Change in financial assumptions

Change in demographic assumptions

Experiencegains and losses on defined benefit obligation
Remeasurement ofthenetassets/(defined liability)

Analysis of movementin the present value of scheme
liabilities

At 1 August

Movementin the year:

Current service cost

Interestcost

Changes in financial assumptions
Change in demographic assumptions
Experienceloss/(gain) in defined benefit obligation
Past service costs, including curtailments
Estimated benefits paidnet oftransfers in
Contributions by scheme participants
Unfunded pension payments

At 31 July

Analysis of movementin the fair value of scheme assets

At 1 August

Intereston assets

Return on assets less interest

Otheractuarial losses

Administration expenses

Contributions paid

Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded netof transfers in

At 31 July

Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £000 £°000
16,448 10,884 14,508 9,490
16,448 10,884 14,508 9,490
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £000 £°000
2,662 2,648 2,263 2,245
267 267 210 210
2,929 2915 2,473 2,455
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £000 £000
28,859 (565) 22,747 (444)
- (4,527) - (4,077)
(32,773) (31,490) (27,208) (25.,886)
4,664 (1,007) 3,817 (618)
7,671 (6,643) 6,232 (6,977)
8,421 (44,232) 5,588 (38,002)
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
386,865 335,112 315,951 271,384
16,448 10,884 14,508 9,490
5,764 6,981 4,708 5,656
32,773 31,490 27,208 25,886
(4,664) 1,007 (3,817) 618
(7,671) 6,643 (6,232) 6,977
(6,950) (6,576) (5,651) (5,161)
2,404 2,083 2,127 1,829
(759) (759) (728) (728)
424,210 386,865 348,074 315,951
Consolidated University
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £000 £°000
205,817 205,757 161,862 161,649
3,102 4,333 2,445 3411
28,859 (565) 22,747 (444)
- (4,527) - (4,077)
(267) (267) (210) (210)
9,667 8,421 8,687 7,422
(7,709) (7,335) 6,379) (5,889)
239,469 205,817 189,152 161,862

The projected pensionexpense forthe yearto 31 July 2022 1is £22,1 13k (consolidated) £19,422k (University).
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29.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact of changes in financial assumptions

Group University
Adjustmentto: £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Discountrate 0.10% 0.00% -0.10% 0.10% 0.00% -0.10%
Present value of total obligation 415324 424210 433,109 340,763 348,074 355,548
Projectedservice cost 18,235 18,924 19,636 16,095 16,706 17,338
Long term salary increase 0.10% 0.00% -0.10% 0.10% 0.00% 0.10%
Present value of total obliga tion 424,782 424210 423,641 348,566 348,074 347,585
Projectedservice cost 18,934 18,924 18,913 16,715 16,706 16,697
Pension increasesand
deferred revaluation 0.10% 0.00% -0.10% 0.10% 0.00% -0.10%
Present value of total obligation 432,511 424210 416,076 354,960 348,074 341,329
Projected service cost 19,626 18,924 18,244 17,329 16,706 16,103
Life expectancy assumptions +1 Year None -1 Year +1 Year None -1 Year
Present value of total obligation 444317 424210 405,053 364,598 348,074 332,335
Projected service cost 19,790 18,924 18,091 17,471 16,706 15,971

D. London South Bank University Defined Contribution Scheme

The University provides a defined contribution pension scheme through Aviva for employees of London South Bank University
Enterprises Limited (SBUEL), SW4 Catering Limited and from April 2021 new professional services staff. At 31 July 2021 the
University Group had 83 members participating in the scheme (2020:47). The University Groups contribution to the Aviva scheme
fortheyearending31 July 2021 was £173,196 (2020: £137,861)and employer’s contribution rates duringthe yearranged from
6%-10%. Pension contributions payable at 31 July2021 were £29,944 (2020: £16,401).

E. National Employment Savings Trust (NEST)

The University Group provided a defined contribution scheme through NEST foremployees of SW4, a subsidiary of South Bank
Colleges. At31 July 2021 there were no staffin the scheme (2020:13), with members being transferred to the London South Bank
University Defined Contribution scheme from 1st April2021. Employer contribution to the NEST scheme for the yearending 31
July 2021 was £4,636 (2020:£7,448) and employer contributionswere 3%. Pension contributions payable at 31 July 2021 were £nil
(2020:£1,211).

F.NOW Pensions

The University provides a defined contribution scheme through NOW for employees of SBUEL sta ff engaged through LSBU
Employment. At 31 July 2021 there were 229 staff in the scheme (2020:88). Employer contribution to the NOW scheme for the
yearending 31 July 2021 was £129,013 (2020: £9,868) and employer contributions were 3%. Pension contributions payable at
31 July 2021 were £891 (2020:£2,090).

Related party transactions

The accounts of SBUEL, a wholly owned subsidiary, are consolidated into these financial statements. During the year the

university paid for expenses and equipment for SBUEL and used SBUEL employment agency staff totalling £(496)k (2020:
£(312)k),and collected rental income of £46k (2020: £40k). At the year-end the University owed SBUEL £356k (2020: (£186)k).
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29 Related party transactions

The University is the sole Member of South Bank Colleges (SBC), a Private Limited Company by guarantee, which was incorporated
on 1st August 2018. SBCandit’s wholly owned subsidiary, SW4 Catering Limited, are consolidated into these financial statements. On
1st February 2019 SBCreceived £13.7m from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) which was transferred to the University
on 2nd February 2019 to hold on its behalf and to transfer back to SBC as it is needed to fund operational and capital expenditure
requirements. During the year the University transferred £2m (2020: £2.86m) to SBC. Services totalling £2,056k (2020

£1,082k) were rechargedto SBC during theyear and the balance between SBC and the University at the year-end was £17,281k (2020:
£13,206k).

Due to the nature of the University’s operations and the composition of the Board of Governors (being drawn from public and private
sector organisations) it is possible that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member ofthe Board of Govemors may
have aninterest. All transactions involving organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors may have an interest are
conductedat arm’s lengthand in accordance with the University’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

The University maintains a register of Interests of Governors, the details of which are listed below:

Organisation Governor Position Income Expenditure Debtor Creditor
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
British University
in Egypt David Phoenix  Trustee 1,739 - 1,483 -
Central & NW London
NHS Foundation Non-executive
Trust RashaRana director 11 - 5 -
Greater London London European Structural Investment
Authority Paullvey Fund committee HE Representative 78 - - -
Kings College
London Hilary McCallion Visiting professor - 49 - -
Chairof Health
LondonHigher Warren Tummer  Education Group - 4 - -
LSBU StudentUnion Ruchika Kumar Union council Chair
Maxwell Smith ~ President - 900 - -
National Centre for Universities
and Businesses David Phoenix 5 - - -
Pricewaterhouse
Coopers LLP DuncanBrown Retired partner - 601 - -
SW London & St Chairof Audit Committee
Georges Mental Health Non-executive
NHS Trust Richard Flatman director 10 - 4 -
Richard Flatman Chairof Audit& Risk Committee
Nicole Louis Trustee
Hilary McCallion Chairof Remuneration Committee
South Bank David Phoenix ~ Trustee
Academies Hitesh Tailor Chair 54 - 27 -
Non-executive
Transport for London Mee LingNg director 36) - - -
UCEA Jeremy Cope Vice-chair - 12 - -
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30. Postbalance sheetevents

The 2020 USS Valuation has now been completed and filed with the Pension Regulator with an effective date of 1st October2021 and
constitutes a non adjusting post balance sheet event. The deficit recovery provision is based on the 2018 valuation which was binding
atthe yearenddate.
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